RMLD s B Reading Municipal Light Department
; RELIABLE POWER FOR GENERATIONS

230 Ash Street
P.O. Box 150
Reading, MA 01867-0250

Tel: (781) 944-1340
Fax: (781) 942-2409
Web: www.rmid.com

AGENDA
RMLD CITIZENS' ADVISORY BOARD (CAB)
Note: Joint meeting with RMLD Board of Commissioners on Item #2

THURSDAY. JANUARY 5, 2012
7:00 P.M.
at
READING MUNICIPAL LIGHT DEPARTMENT
CAFETERIA
230 ASH STREET
READING, MA 01867

1. Call Meeting to Order — A. Carakatsane, Chairman

2. Renewable Energy Certificates (RECs) (Attachments a.-d.) — V. Cameron, J. Parenteau
a. Memo to V. Cameron from J. Parenteau and W. Seldon dated October 21, 2011, Subject: RECs
b. Memo to RMLD Board from V. Cameron dated December 27, 2011, Subject: Discussion of RECs
c. Memo to RMLD Board and CAB from R. Hahn dated December 28, 2011, RE: Renewable Energy
Strategies
d. E-mails to RMLD Board and A. Carakatsane from M.E. O'Neill dated December 28, 2011, Subject:
Clarification on GM Memo to Board and CAB.

Executive Session (If discussion involves such items as pricing and strategy)

Suggested Motion:

MOVE that the CAB go into Executive Session based on Chapter 164, Section 47D exemption from
public records and open meeting requirements in certain instances and return to Regular Session.
Note: Roll call vote required.

3. Return to Regular Session
4. Minutes of Meeting — October 24, 2011
5. Sustainable Energy Policy Update — V. Cameron, J. Parenteau
6. Net Metering Rate (Attachments) — V. Cameron, J. Parenteau
a. Residential
b. Commercial
7. CAB Rotation Schedule for RMLD Board Meetings (Attachment) — P. O’Leary
8. Other Items for Discussion - 2012 Legislative Rally (Attachment)

9. Schedule Next Meeting



10. Executive Session
Suggested Motion
MOVE that the CAB go into Executive Session based on Chapter 164, Section 47D exemption from
public records and open meeting requirements in certain instances, to discuss power supply, renewable
energy, and return to regular session for the sole purpose of adjournment.

11. Adjournment

This Agenda has been prepared in advance and does not necessarily include all matters, which may be taken up at
this meeting.

Upcoming RMLD Board Meetings:
Wednesday, January 25, 2011 — Regular RMLD Board Meeting



#2

Renewable Energy Certificates



#2. a.

Memo to V. Cameron from J. Parenteau and W. Seldon
dated October 21, 2011



To: Vin Cameron

From: Jane Parenteau
Bill Seldon o
Date: October 21, 2011
Subject: Rencwable Energy Certificates (RECs)

The Reading Municipal Light Department (RMLD) entered into a Purchase Power Agreement
(PPA) with Swift River Hydro for the output of four hydro projects including capacity, energy,
Renewable Energy Certificates (RECs) and all other environmental attributes. In addition,
RMLD has signed a PPA with Concord Steam, a biomass project which is sch duled to be
operational in early 2013.

Swift River Hydro

Table 1 shows the projected monthly Mwh generation for each of the four projects that RMLD
has negotiated a PPA: Woronoco, Turners Falls, Pepperell, and Indian River. Swift River
currently has a PPA for the Collins project with NSTAR which expires in September, 2013.

Table 1
Projected Monthly Mwh

Average Awerage Average 2011 2011-12 Total Average 2015 Total

Woronocp  TumersFalls  Pepperel’  indinRiver  Enemzy Qutout Colliny Energy Outout
January 993 138 685 307 2,124 581 2,704
February 169 688 263 2,018 515 2,533
March 1,387 418 a72 440 3,197 707 3,903
April 1,508 3R a57 793 3,645 703 4,348
May 1,267 231 811 634 2,944 e85 3,609
June 750 13 529 329 1,621 442 2,063
July 460 247 308 154 1,168 27 1,439
Augpst 387 244 264 129 1,024 258 1,282
Septermber 364 0 233 127 73 215 a37
October 521 68 410 207 1,208 313 1,519
Noverrber 839 )] 566 3o 1,875 440 2,314
Decerrber 1001 264 700 457 2,433 561 2,993
Anrual Output: 10.350 2276 7123 4228 23,978 5667 29,645
CT Clans | RECs: 3881° 2276 7.123° 4228 17,509 - 17,509
CT Clams 2 RECa: 6469 " - - 6,469 5657 12,136
RI New RECs: 38817 - 3775 - 7.857 - 7.657
R Existing RECs: 6,469 - 3348° - 9,817 - 9,817
MA Class 1 RECs: 4037° - 85007 4228 ¢ 16,785 5667 " 2,432
MA Class 2 RECs: 63147 - - - 6,314 - 6,314




One REC is equivalent to 1,000 kWhs or 1 Mwh of gencration. Based on the projected monthly
generation, it is anticipated that the four projects would have an annual generation of 23,978
Mwhs. This would result in the RMLD receiving 23.978 RECs.

Investor Owned Ultilitics (IOUs) have a Renewable Portfolio Standard (RPS).
summary of the RPS.

Below is a

e Under the Class | Renewable Porttolio Standard, all retail electricity suppliers must provide a
minimum percentage of kilowatt-hours (kWh) sales to end-use customers in Massachusetts from
eligible renewable energy resources installed afier December 31, 1997, according to the
following schedule:

5.0% of sales by 12/31/2010
6.0% of sales by 12/31/2011
7.0% of sales by 12/31/2012
8.0% of sales by 12/31/2013
9.0% of sales by 12/31/2014
10.0% of sales by 12/31/2015
11.0% of sales by 12/31/2016

0O0OO0OD0OO0OO0OCO

Currently, Massachusetts municipals are exempt from the Renewable Portfolio Standard.
The current RECs that are attributable to the Swift River Hydro projects have a financial value.

Table 2 shows the projected four year market value of the anticipated RECs from Swift River.

Tabie 2
Market Value
2011 2012 2013 2014

CT Class | RECs: S 418,903.39 $407,478.75 S 407,478.75 $388,437.69
CT Class 2 RECs: S 2,186.20 S 4,372.40 S S -

Annuai Value S 421,089.59 $411,851.15 S 407,478.75 $388,437.69
MA Class 1 RECs: S 494,563.50 $502,945.93 $ 494,563.50 $486,181.07

Annuai Value $ 494,563.50 $502,945.93 S 494,563.50 $486,181.07

Concord Steam

In 2013, the RMLD anticipates that the Concord Steam Project should achieve Commercial
Opecration. Based on an annual plant production of 130.000 Mwhs and the RMLD receiving 33% of
the output. the RMLD would have an additional 42.500 Mwhs with an cquivalent of 42,500 RECs.
The projected market value of NH Class | RI:C is $29.00/REC. This would result in an annual value
of approximately $1.2 million.



The RMLD has several options available regarding RECs.
Potential Options:

Option 1: If the RMLD would like to refer to the output of the hydro projects as ‘“‘renewable”, then
RMLD would need to retire the RECs from the projects. By doing so, the value of the RECs would
be zero.

Option 2: Currently the RMLD does not have a RPS. The RMLD could set a policy where a
portion of the RECs are sold and a portion could be retired. This would provide RMLD with
additional funds that could be earmarked for other sustainable projects within the RMLD service
territory (i.c., Solar on municipal buildings).

Option 3: The RMLD could market all the RECs until it has a RPS. The revenue that RMLD
receives as a result of this could be used to lower the overall cost of the project. For Swift River, it is

estimated that utilizing this option could reduce the overall cost of the project by approximately
$20/Mwh.

Energy Services would like to work with the RMLD Board and CAB to determine the direction that
would best serve the interest of the RMLD customers.

With the lack of an RPS, many municipalities are marketing the value of the RECs associated with
their renewable resources. These systems include Ipswich, Princeton, Taunton and Templcton.
Additionally, Holden, Wellesley, Middleborough, and Concord are currently selling their Solar
RECs (SRECs).

We look forward to discussing this concept with you as well as both the RMLD and CAB Boards.



#2. b.

Memo to RMLD Board from V. Cameron
dated December 27, 2011,



READING MUNICIPAL LIGHT DEPARTMENT

Ve
To: RMLD Board ? Cf"AL/ \{ Date: December 27, 2011
From: Vinnie Cameron |/¢ %

Subject: Discussion of Renewable Energy Certificates

Over the past six months, the Reading Municipal Light Department (RMLD) has
been engaged in discussions with the Power & Rate Committee and the Citizens’
Advisory Board (CAB) over the issue of selling or retiring the Renewable Energy
Certificates (RECs) that the RMLD receives as a result of various RMLD Purchase
Power Agreements (PPAs). The RMLD has been directed by the RMLD Board to
purchase renewable energy (wind, solar, hydroelectricc biomass, etc.) at
reasonable rates. Over the last year, the RMLD has signed two such contracts,
one with Concord Steam, a biomass generator and the other with Swift River,
LLC, an owner of several hydroelectric dams. The price of these two projects is
very competitive and their effect on the RMLD's rate is insignificant. Attributes
of these two projects also include RECs.

The intent of this memo is to inform the RMLD Board and the CAB as to the facts
surrounding the REC issue.

What is a REC?

The REC, in its simplest form, is a representation that electricity that was
generated from an eligible renewable energy resource. A renewable energy
provider (such as a wind farm) is credited with one REC for every 1,000 kWh or 1
MWh of electricity it produces

What can you do with a REC?

A utility company may retire the RECs they receive from renewab e energy
suppliers or they can sell the RECs into the REC market. There are different
“Class” designations of RECs based on the mode of generation, location, and
date of development.

What is the REC market?

REC markets have been established in order for owners of RECs to sell them to
entities that require RECs. RECs can be traded directly from buyer to seller,
however, marketers, brokers, or asset managers are found in the marketplace.



Renewable generation facilities will often sell their RECs to these entities who
then resell them on the market at a later date.

There are also Solar RECs, which are associated with the output of solar energy
installations. ~ Currently, these RECs are worth $550 a megawatt-hour or
$.55/kWh in Massachusetts. In 2012 and 2013 the Solar RECs decrease in worth
gradually to an estimated $365 megawatt-hour or $.365/kWh in 2021. Solar RECs
are purchased by Investor Owned Utilities (IOUs) as part of their RPS solar
energy requirements.

What is a Renewable Portfolio Standard?

The Massachusetts Department of Energy Resources (MDOER) developed the
Massachusetts Renewable Portfolio Standard (MRPS) to require IOUs to purchase
certain amounts of Green Energy as a percentage of their overall electricity sales. In
doing so, the Commonwealth of Massachusetts encouraged the development of
renewable energy in Massachusetts and New England. The percentages of
renewable energy required by the MRPS are shown below.

. 5.0% of sales by 12/31/2010
. 6.0% of sales by 12/31/2011
. 7.0% of sales by 12/31/2012
. 8.0% of sales by 12/31/2013
. 9.0% of sales by 12/31/2014
. 10.0% of sales by 12/31/2015
. 11.0% of sales by 12/31/2016
. 12.0% of sales by 12/31/2017
. 13.0% of sales by 12/31/2018
. 14.0% of sales by 12/31/2019
. 15.0% of sales by 12/31/2020
and an additional 1% of sales each year thereafter.

Who needs to purchase RECs?

IOUs need to purchase RECs under the requirements of a MRPS outlined above.
Other entities may purchase RECs in order to show their support for renewable
energy development or to offset their carbon footprint.

How does the MRPS effect municipal electric utilities?
The municipal electric utilities in Massachusetts are exempt from the MRPS.



Does the RMLD have any interaction with the REC market in addition to the
RECs they receive from the Swift River projects?

The RMLD has developed the Green Choice program, which offers customers the
option to purchase RECs as part of their bill. The RMLD purchases RECs from
the REC market in order to satisfy the requirements of the Green Choice
Program. The RMLD could also use the RECs they receive from Swift River to
satisfy the RECs needed for the Green Choice Program.

What is the RMLD’s RECs worth?

As stated above, the RMLD has signed power supply agreements with two
renewable energy suppliers. The RECs from the Swift River Project is worth
about $494,000 annually, at the present REC market rate.

The RMLD will also receive RECs associated with the electrical output from the
Concord Steam Plant. When the Concord Steam Project comes on line in 2013 the
RECs could be worth approximately $1.6 million annually, based on normal
operation of the plant and the present biomass REC market.

What is the relative worth of the RECs?

The RECs from Swift River have been forecast to have an annual worth of about
$494,000 in 2012 and the RMLD has estimates its overall revenue requirement in
2012 to be $87,845,000. The Swift River RECs are approximately .56% of the
RMLD annual revenues requirements.

With the addition of the Concord Steam RECs the total worth of the RMLD
RECs, based on today’s REC market, will be approximately $1.6 million, which
could represent 1.8% of the RMLD revenue requirements in 2013.

For the average residential customer, the $494,000 of Swift River RECs equates to
$.56 per month or $6.77 per year. In 2013, with the Concord Steam Plant coming
on line, the total RMLD RECs may be worth approximately $1.6 million at
present market rates. In 2013, RECs may equate to $1.82 per month or $21.94 per
year for an average residential customer.

What do other municipal electric utilities do with the RECs they receive?

I conducted a survey of municipals in Massachusetts concerning whether they
have renewable energy in their portfolio and if they do; what do they do with the
RECs they receive. Hull, West Boylston, Concord, Middleboro, Ipswich, Holden,
Paxton, Templeton, and Wellesley, all responded that they sell their RECs.



Groveland responded that they don’t have renewable energy presently but were
in favor of selling them.

What is the difference between RECs and the RGGI (Regional Greenhouse
Gas Initiative) program?

The REC market was developed to encourage the development of the renewable
energy industry. As stated above, the IOUs have to purchase RECs to satisfy
requirements of the MRPS. The RGGI program was developed to allow
generating plants to purchase emission allowances that offset their air emissions.
Generators cannot offset their air emissions with RECs.

Are RECs related to the Massachusetts Green Communities Act?
The two programs are mutually exclusive.

How do the RMLD customers feel about the RMLD acquiring renewable
energy?

The Customer Survey the RMLD performed in 2010 said that a majority of the
RMLD customers were in favor of the RMLD acquiring renewable energy.
However, the survey did not ask the customers if they were in favor of paying a
higher price for renewable energy.

The Town of Reading considered becoming a Green Community a few years ago.
A city or town must meet six prongs to become a Green Community under the
Massachusetts Green Community Act and be charged the Massachusetts
Renewable Energy Trust Charge of $.0025/kWh. At that time I met with the
Town Managers of the four towns concerning this issue and they agreed that they
did not want their constituents to pay higher costs due to Reading becoming a
Green Community. The Town of Reading did not become a Green Community.

What can the RMLD do with the revenue if they sell the RECs?

A case can be made that any revenue from the sale of the RECs should be
credited to the Fuel Charge since the RECs are purchased on $/kWh basis.
However, the RMLD could set aside an amount of money in the Capital Budget,
similar to the revenue received from the REC sale, for development of renewable
energy projects in its service territory. In doing so, the customers would be
getting some value for the RECs.



Does the RMLD have a Sustainable Energy Policy in place?

The RMLD General Manager, Staff, and Power & Rate Committee have been
working on a Sustainable Energy Policy for the past several months. The RMLD
wants to work cooperatively with the RMLD Board to establish a policy that
represents views of the Board with respect to purchasing renewable energy and
minimizing the ongoing cost of renewable energy to its customers.

If you have questions concerning this issue please call me at 781-942-6415.



#2. C.

Memo to RMLD Board and CAB from R. Hahn
dated December 28, 2011



To:  RMLD Board of Commissioners (“RMLB”)
RMLD Citizens Advisory Board (“CAB”)

From: Dick Hahn

Date: December 28, 2011

RE: Renewable Energy Strategies

Over the last several weeks, considerable discussion has taken place regarding Renewable
Energy Certificates (“RECs”) and whether to sell RECs that the RMLD receives from it
renewable energy purchases or whether to keep these RECs. During this debate, a claim has
been made that a strategy of (a) entering into long-term contracts to buy the output of renewable
energy projects including RECs now and (b) selling those RECs until such time as the RMLD is
required to comply with Massachusetts’ Renewable Portfolio Standards (“RPS”) represents the

preferred option for RMLD ratepayers. I have performed a detailed pro forma analysis and have
concluded that such a strategy is not the preferred option. If the RMLD wishes to sell RECs

now, and therefore not be renewable or green, the RMLD ratepayers would have been better off
if the RMLD did not buy the output of renewable energy projects now, but rather wait until, if
ever, the RMLD is required to comply with Massachusetts RPS. This memo describes the
analysis that I performed.

The RMLD currently has long-term contracts with two renewable energy projects, Swift River
and Concord Steam. The Swift River Project consists of several existing, small hydro-electric
generators built many years ago located in Massachusetts, and is estimated to provide about
24,000 MWH per year. Concord Steam is a wood-fired cogeneration plant located in Concord,
NH. When completed and placed in-service in 2013, RMLD’s purchased share of the output of
Concord Steam is expected to be about 42,500 MWH annually. The RMLD buys energy,
capacity, and RECs from these two projects. Because the RMLD buys the RECs, it can claim
that these projects provide renewable energy, consist with RMLB policy and direction given to
RMLD staff.



Purchases from these projects cost significantly more than conventional power suppliers. This
fact was known when the RMLB and the CAB unanimously voted to authorize the RMLD to
execute these contracts. Figure 1 below compares the annual cost of the Swift River and
Concord Steam project purchases to an equivalent purchase from conventional, non-renewable
resources. Figure 1 also shows the cost of the Swift River and Concord Steam project purchases
assuming the RMLD sells the RECs. As shown in Figure 1, if the RMLD keeps the RECs, it will
legitimately have a portion of its power supply portfolio from renewable energy resources, albeit
at a higher cost than if it has purchased from conventional resources. If the RECs are sold, the
RMLD will not have any renewable energy resources in its portfolio but it will still pay
considerably more than conventional power supplies. Thus, if the RECs are sold, the RMLD

will have unnecessarily increased its power supply costs without any benefit.

Figure 1

RMLD 2011 RENEWABLE PURCHASES VS CONVENTIONAL POWER SUPPLIES
Assuming no REC price increase due to RPS for systems

SWIFT COMEORD SWIRE CONCORD CONV

RIVER STEAM TOTAL RIVER SIFAM  RFCPRICE  POWER SWIFTRIVER € ONCORD TOTALS 1§55 ¢ ONV POWER
MWH SIMWH S/MWH MW S/mwH S STEAM S o s REC LALE 5 IATFERENCE

2012 24,000 0 24,000 $10000  $120.00 $30.00 $50.00 $2,400,000 S0 52,400,000 $720000  $1,580000  $1,200,000 $480,000
2013 24,000 42,500 66,500 $102.50  $123.00 $30.75 $51.25 $2460000  $5227,500  $7,687,500  $2,044.875  $5642625  $3,408,125 52,234,500
2014 24,000 42,500 66,500 $10506  $126.08 $31.52 $52.53 $2,521,500  $5,358,188  $7.879688 52,095,997  $5,783,691  $3493,328 52,290,363
2015 24,000 42,500 66,500 $107.69  $129.23 $32.31 $53.84 $2,584,538  $5492,142  SB076680 52,148,397  $5928283  $3,580661 2,347,622
2016 24,000 42,500 66,500 $110.38  $132.46 $33.11 $55.19 $2,649,151  $5629,446  SB278597 52,200,107  $6076490  $3670,178 2,406,312
2017 24,000 42,500 66,500 s34 $13877 $33.94 $56.57 $2,715,380  S5770,182  $BABS562  $2,257.159  $6,228402  $3,761932  $2,466470
2018 24,000 42,500 66,500 $115.97  $139.16 $34.79 $57.98 $2,783,264  $5914.436  $8,697.701 2,313,588  $6,384,112  $38S5981  $2,528,132
2019 24,000 42,500 66,500 $118.87  $142.64 $35.66 §59.43 $2,852,846  $65,062,297  SA915143  $2,371428  $6,543,715  $3952,380 52,591,335
2020 24,000 42,500 66,500 S121.84  $146.21 $36.55 $60.92 $2924,167  $6213,055  $9,138022 52,430,714  $6707,308  $4051,190 52,656,118
2021 24,000 42,500 66,500 $12489  $149.86 $37.47 56244 $2997271  $6,369.201  $9366472 52,491,482  $6,874991  $4152469 52,722,521
2022 24,000 42,500 66,500 $12001  $153.61 $38.40 $64.00 $3072203  $6526,431  $9.600,634 52,553,769  $7,046865  $4,256281  $2,790,584
2023 24,000 42,500 66,500 $13121  $157.45 $39.36 $65.60 $3,149008 56,691,642  $9840650  $2,617.613  $7,223,037  $4,362,688 2,860,349
2024 24,000 42,500 66,500 $134.49  $161.39 $40.35 $67.24 $3227.733  $6858,933 $10086666 52,683,055  $7,403613  $4471,755 2,931,858
2025 24,000 42,500 66,500 §137.85  $165.42 $41.36 $60.93 $3,308427  $7.030406 $10338,833  $2,750,130 _ $7,588,703  $4,583549  $3005154
SUM 336000 552,500 888,500 $39545487 579,146,659 $118,792,146 $31,680311 $87,111,835 52,800,518  $34,311317
NPV (20115} $29446852 $57,670,715  $87,117,567 $23,251,734 $63,065832 $38,752,890  $25,112,942
nestivon 2130%
sscousim 00w RMLD 2011 PURCHASES
12,000,000
510,000,000 e

o /
/"' /

$6,000,000

4,000,000 —————//——-
7

$2.000,000

$0

2010 2012 2014 1016 1018 2020 2022 1024 1026

==T0TAlS ===TOTAl S1ESSRECSALE ~——-CONVPOWERS

The next step in the analysis is to examine what would happen if the RMLD (and other

municipal electric systems in Massachusetts) were mandated to comply with a RPS. When the



RPS were imposed on the Massachusetts investor-owned utilities, advance notice was given,
and the percentage of each utility’s supply portfolio that must be from renewable energy
resources began at a very low level (i.e., 1%) and was gradually increased over time (i.e., at 1%
per year). I have assumed a similar approach for any RPS that might be mandated for
Massachusetts municipal systems. Specifically, I have assumed that the RPS commences in
2015 at 1% and increases at 1% per year thereafter. Figure 2 below depicts the assumed RPS
that would apply to the RMLD in this analysis.

Figure 2

ASSUMED RMLD RPS

YEAR RMLD MWH e MWH RPS
2015 760,563 1.00% 7,606
2016 771,971 2.00% 15,439
2017 783,551 3.00% 23,507
2018 795,304 4.00% 31812
2019 807,233 5.00% 40,362
2020 819,342 6.00% 49,161
2021 831,632 7.00% 58,214
2022 844,106 8.00% 67.529
2023 856,768 9.00% 77.109
2024 869,620 10.00% 86,962
2025 882,664 11.00% 97,093

Massachusetts RPS also contains a provision that caps the cost of compliance. Entities subject to
a RPS can opt to pay an Alternative Compliance Payment (“ACP”), based upon a known rate per
MWH. If REC prices, either those embodied in long-term renewable power contracts or market
prices for REC:s sold separately, exceed the ACP rate, utilities that are subject to the RPS can opt
to make a payment to the Commonwealth of Massachusetts Clean Energy Center (“CEC”) equal
to the ACP rate multiplied by the number of RECs possessed that fall short of the RPS. Thus,
the ACP serves as a cap on RPS compliance costs. Utilities will not be required to pay prices for
renewable projects such as Cape Wind, which costs about $190 per MWH escalating at a high
rate. Figure 3 below shows the ACPs assumed in this analysis. The 2011 ACP is set at $62.13
per MWH.' I have assumed that this payment will escalate at 2.5% per year.

: The 2011 ACP of $62.13 per MWH is for Massachusetts Class [ RECs. The ACP for Class Il RECs, such
as hydro facilities that were in service prior to 1997, is $25.00 per MWH. For the purposes of this analysis,
I have assumed that the Class I ACP applies to all RECs purchased by the RMLD.



Figure 3

ALTERNATIVE
COMPLIANCE
PAYMENT

YEAR ACP S/MWH

2012 $63.68
2013 $65.28
2014 $66.91
2015 $68.58
2016 $70.29
2017 $72.05
2018 $73.85
2019 $75.70
2020 $77.59
2021 $79.53
2022 $81.52
2023 $83.56
2024 $85.65
2025 $87.79

To address the claim that RECs prices would dramatically increase when and if Massachusetts
municipal systems become subject to mandatory RPS, I initially assumed that REC prices would
increase by 50% in 2015, the first year of the assumed RMLD RPS. Under the assumptions
described above, I determined the power supply costs for complying with a RPS for two
scenarios. The first scenario uses the Swift River and Concord Steam contracts as the
compliance strategy, with any available RECs being sold staring in 2012 and revenues from the
sale of these RECs used to reduce power supply costs until they are needed for RPS compliance.
To the extent that the Swift River / Concord Steam purchases do not provide sufficient RECs to
comply with the RPS, additional RECs are purchased separately. Any surplus of RECs is
assumed to be sold at the higher REC prices (i.e., plus 50% in this scenario). The second
scenario assumes no renewable energy purchases, but complies with the RPS using a strategy of
buying RECs as needed. Figure 4 below provides the results of this comparison over the 14 year

study period from 2012 to 2025, which are also summarized as follows.

e Costs for Swift River / Concord Steam without REC sale: $118.8 million
e Costs for Swift River / Concord Steam without REC sale: $105.5 million
e Conventional power purchases plus REC purchases: $84.6 million

¢ Conventional power purchases; no REC purchases: $52.8 million



It’s important to put these numbers in perspective. The RMLD total annual power supply costs
are currently about $75 million. If this amount were to escalate at 2.5% per year (the same
assumption made above), total power supply costs over the 2012 to 2015 period would be
approximately $1,270 million. The compliance costs estimated here, while a large dollar

amount, represent a small portion of RMLD’s total power supply costs.

Figure 4
RMLD RPS COMPLIANCE COSTS
Assumning o 50% REC price Incranse due te APS for
SCENARIO 1: BUY RENEWABLE STARTING IN 2013; SELL NECs UNTIL REQUIRED SCENARIO 2: BUY CONVENTIONAL POWER AND RECs AS REQUIRED
2012 0 24,000 2,400,000 21000)  $30.00 §720000)  $1,680,000 2012 24,000 $1,200,000 0 $0.00 1,200,000
2013 0 66,500 $7,687,500 1655001 $30.78 12M14835)  §5,642,625 2013 66500  §3,408,125 0 $0.00  §3408125
2014 [ 68,500 $7.079688 166500) 3152 11295997 5,783,691 2014 66500  $3453328 0 $0.00  $3.493328
2018 7,606 66500 $8,076,680 1563%4) 54846 (354080 §5222,654 2015 66,500  $3580,661 7606  $368.569.18  $3,949.231
2016 15439 66,500 $8.278.597 1510611 $549.67 (25%.260) 5742337 2016 66500  $3670,178 15439 §766,900.33  $4,437,078
2017 21,507 66,500 $8,485 562 142088 $s0.91 121156943 $6,296,618 2017 66500  $3,761,932 23507  $1,196795.90 54,958,728
2018 31812 66,500 $0,697,701 139688)  $52.19 118101271 $6,887,473 2018 66500  $3855981 31812 5166015538  $5516,136
2019 20,382 66,500 $8,915,143 i25138)  $53.49 113981621 7,516,981 2018 66500  $3952380 40362 52,150,980.19  $6,111,360
2020 43,161 66,500 $9,138,022 39 $54.83 [053692)  $6,187.330 2020 66,500 54,051,190 49,161  $2695378.82  $6,745,568
2021 58214 66,500 $9,366,472 2861 $56.20 14656501 $8,900,822 1021 66500  $4,152,469 S8,214  $3271,572.19  $7,424042
2022 67529 66,500 9,600,634 1029 $57.60 59246 59,659,880 2022 66500  $4,256,281 67529 $3,889,699.34  $B.146,180
2023 77109 66,500 9,840,650 10,609  $59.04 626404  $10,467054 2023 66,500 54,362,688 7109 $4552823.28  $8915511
2024 86,962 66,500  $10,086,665 w462 $60.52 1238357  $11,325024 2024 66500 54,471,755 85967  $5262,937.24  $9,734,693
2028 97083 66,500  £10338.833 30593 36203 L897.777  $12336510 2028 66500 $4.583.549 97013 $6022.971.16 _ $10,806.520
sum 554,793 883,500  $114,792,145 173307 1$11.143047) $106,549,099 SUM 888500  $52,800518 554,793 $31,846,983  $84,647,501
NPV |20115) $87,117.567 1511810,838)  $75,306,728 NPV |20115) $38,752,850 $10843641  $59596532
e mrictoat 0% cormed a1 AP RMLD RSP COMPLIANCE COSTS
514,000,000
511,000,000 -
‘ // -~
$8,000,000 //
56,000,000 /__\//
54,000,000 //_/
51,000,000 4
1010 012 104 2016 1018 1010 1011 1014 1016
= SCENARIO]  =—=SCENARIO 1

This analysis clearly shows that buying the output of renewable projects now and selling the

RECs until needed results in significantly higher costs than a strategy of buying conventional
power supplies and buying RECs as needed.

To test the robustness of this conclusion, I analyzed other assumed increases in REC prices once
Massachusetts’ municipal electric systems become subject to a RPS. Figure 5 below provides a
summary of the results. Assumed price increases in these sensitivity analyses ranged from 0% to

200%. In my opinion, such large prices are unlikely to occur because Massachusetts’ municipal



electric systems sell less than 10% of the electricity state-wide. I also note that at price increases
above 100%, the ACP serves to cap RPS compliance costs. So, while a higher assumed REC
price increase does narrow the difference between the two strategies analyzed, the strategy of

buying RECs now before they are needed” them and “banking always results in higher RPS

compliance costs.

I conclude from this analysis that a strategy of buying renewable power now and selling the
RECs until needed will result in higher costs to RMLD customers, and we will not have any true
renewable energy in our power supply portfolio. If we want to truly have a renewable energy

strategy, as endorsed by the RMLB, we should keep the RECs that the RMLD has purchased

from Swift River and Concord Steam.

Figure §

SUMMARY OF RMLD RPS COMPLIANCE COSTS

SCENARIO 1: BUY RENEWABLE STARTING IN 2012; SELL RECs UNTIL REQUIRED
SCENARIO 2: BUY CONVENTIONAL POWER AND RECs AS REQUIRED

SUM NPV (20115) % SAVINGS WITH SCENARIO 2
REC PRICE JUMP SCENARIO1 SCENARIO2 SCENARIO1 SCENARIO 2

0.00% $108,343,157 $74,031,840 577,761,593  $52,648,651 46% 48%
25.00% $106,946,128 $79,339,671 $76534,161  $56,122,592 35% 36%
50.00% $105,549,099 $84,647,501 $75,306,728  $59,596,532 25% 26%
75.00% $104,152,070  $89,955,332  $74,079,296  $63,070,472 16% 17%
100.00% $102,755,040  $95,263,162 $72,851,863  $66,544,412 8% 9%
125.00% $102,068,959 $97,869,838 $72,249,071  $68,250,464 4% 6%
150.00% $102,068,959 $97,869,838 $72,249,071  $68,250,464 4% 6%
175.00% $102,068,959 $97,869,838  $72,249,071  $68,250,464 4% 6%
200.00% $102,068,959 $97,869,838  $72,249,071  $68,250,464 4% 6%

SCENARIO 1 - BUYING AND BANKING RECs - IS ALWAYS MORE EXPENS!VE




#2. d.

E-mails to RMLD Board and A. Carakatsane from ME O’Neill
dated December 28, 2011



Page 1 of 1

Paula O'Leary

From: Vincent Cameron

Sent:  Thursday, December 29, 2011 8:55 AM

To: Pauia O'Leary

Subject: FW: Clarification on GM Memo to Board and CAB

From: MaryEllen O'Neill [mailto:maryelienoneili@hotmail.com]

Sent: Wednesday, December 28, 2011 1:07 PM

To: Richard Hahn; Phii Pacino; Gina Snyder; Bob Soli; Atty. Arthur J. Carakatsane
Cc: Vincent Cameron; Jane Parenteau

Subject: Clarification on GM Memo to Board and CAB

Yesterday the RMLD General Manager sent a memo entitled "Discussion of Renewable Energy Certificates” to the Board
and the CAB. Certain points need to be ciarified so that ail the facts are before the Board and the CAB.

In the first paragraph, page one, the GM states "The RMLD has been directed by the RMLD Board to purchase renewable
energy ..." The beginning of this sentence should be corrected to read "The RMLD staff has been directed by the RMLD
Board to purchase renewabie energy...." The "RMLD" as an entity is the staff and the Board, there is no "RMLD" that
does not include the Board.

In the section "What can you do with a REC?" on page 1, there is no discussion, nor is there any discussion anywhere in
the memo, of the consequences that resuit from selling RECs. If a utility company selis the RECs bundied with a
particular energy purchase, the energy associated with that purchase can no longer be represented or reported anywhere
to be green/renewable/sustainable (pick your adjective).

In the section "What do other municipal electric utilities do with the RECs they receive?" on page 3, it is stated "I
conducted a survey of municipals in Massachusetts concerning whether they have renewable energy in their portfolio and
if they do; what do they do with the RECs they receive. ...... all responded that they sell their RECs.” As noted previously,
no claims to having renewable energy in their portfolio can be made by utilities, municipal or not, once they sell the
associated RECs.

In the section "How do the RMLD customers feel about the RMLD acquiring renewable energy?" on page 4, it is stated
*...the survey did not ask the customers if they were in favor of paying a higher price for renewable energy.” This
statement/implication is in direct contradiction to the General Manager's remark in the opening paragraph of the memo, in
reference to the Swift River and Concord Steam projects, that "The price of these two projects is very competitive and
their effect on the RMLD's rate is insignificant.” Please note that this competitive price already includes the RECs.

In the paragraph "What can the RMLD do with the revenue if they sell the RECs?" on page 4, it is stated "A case can be
made that any revenue from the sale of the RECs should be credited to the Fuel Charge ..." This is misleading because in
response this question from a member of the Reading Board of Selectmen at a recent meeting, the General Manager
stated that any revenue from the sale of RECs would go to the Fuel Charge.

In the final section "Does the RMLD have a Sustainable Energy Policy in place?” on page 5, the second sentence "The
RMLD wants to work cooperatively with the RMLD Board to establish a policy ...." should be corrected to read "The RMLD
staff wants to work cooperatively with the RMLD Board to establish a policy..." Once again, the "RMLD" is the staff and
the Board, there is no separate "RMLD" that does not include the Board. It is aiso the responsibility and the prerogative
of the Board to set the RMLD's policies.

12/29/2011



Page 1 of 3

Paula O'Leary

From: Vincent Cameron

Sent:  Thursday, December 29, 2011 11:11 AM

To: Paula O'Leary

Cc: Jeanne Foti

Subject: FW: RMLD - excerpts on RECs/green power from Green-e, FTC, UCS, EPA, and Wikipedia

From: MaryEllen O'Neill [mailto:maryellenoneili@hotmail.com]

Sent: Tuesday, December 27, 2011 2:18 PM

To: Richard Hahn; Phil Pacino; Gina Snyder; Bob Soli; Vincent Cameron; Atty. Arthur J. Carakatsane; Jane
Parenteau

Cc: John Rogers

Subject: FW: RMLD - excerpts on RECs/green power from Green-e, FTC, UCS, EPA, and Wikipedia

John Rogers, Senior Energy Analyst with the Union of Concerned Scientists, sent me the excerpts and links below
to help in understanding the REC issue further. John is also a North Reading resident.

The Center for Resource Solutions, John told me, certifies approximately 70% of the voluntary REC market. The
excerpts are from the CRS website, the FTC's Green Guides, the Union of Concerned Scientists’ website, and the
EPA.

This is for information only.

Center for Resource Solutions (emphasis added): www.green-e.org/getcert_re_stan.shtmi#standard

Regarding double claims in materials published by a generator or other supplier providing
renewable MWh to sellers of Green-e Energy Certified products, counting electricity from
which RECs have been sold as ‘zero emissions’ when reporting electricity sales
constitutes a double claim on those RECs. For example, if a utility sells RECs to another
party and also counts the resulting null power as renewable when reporting electricity sales, this
is a double claim resulting in RECs that are ineligible for use in a Green-e Energy Certified
product. Likewise, there is a double claim if null power is disclosed as zero emissions for the
purpose of informing electricity end users of the overall emissions from delivered electricity. This
includes annual reports that display emissions from electricity supplied to end users. Itis
necessary to assign null power the emissions characteristics of system power for the purposes of
reporting emissions linked to electricity sales.

Such an interpretation of the requirements of the Green-e Energy National Standard and Code of
Conduct are directly in line with the FTC Green Guides, which state on page 223, “If a marketer
generates renewable electricity but sells renewable energy certificates for all of that electricity, it
would be deceptive for the marketer to represent, directly or by implication, that it
uses renewable energy.”

FTC Green Guide (p. 223, emphasis added):

12/29/2011



Page 2 of 3

http://www.ftc.gov/os/fedreg/2010/october/101006¢greenguidesfrn.pdf

A company places solar panels on its store roof to generate power and advertises that its store is
“100% solar-powered.” The company, however, sells renewable energy certificates based on the
renewable attributes of all the power it generates. Even if the company uses the electricity
generated by the solar panels, it has, by selling renewable energy certificates, transferred the
right to characterize that electricity as renewable. The company’s claim is therefore deceptive.
It also would be deceptive for this company to advertise that it “hosts a renewable power
facility” because reasonable consumers likely would interpret this claim to mean that the
company uses renewable energy.

Union of Concerned Scientists: http://www.ucsusa.org/clean_energy/what_you_can_do/buy-green-power.htmi

How Can You Tell If You're Buying Green Power?

When power flows from the generator to your house, electrons get mixed together on the wires.
You can't specify which electrons you get, but you can make sure that your money goes to
support clean, sustainable generators, which has the effect of making the whole system
"greener". To do this, you will need to look closely at utility marketing claims and materials.

EPA (emphasis added): http://www.epa.gov/greenpower/gpmarket/rec.htm
How do RECs work?
All grid-tied renewable-based electricity generators produce two distinct products:

e Physical electricity
e RECs

At the point of generation, both product components can be sold together or separately, as a
bundled or unbundled product. In either case, the renewable generator feeds the physical
electricity onto the electricity grid, where it mixes with electricity from other generation sources.
Since electrons from all generation sources are indistinguishable, it is impossible to track the
physical electrons from a specific point of generation to a specific point of use.
As renewable generators produce electricity, they create one REC for every 1000 kilowatt-hours
(or 1 megawatt-hour) of electricity placed on the grid. If the physical electricity and the
associated RECs are sold to separate buyers, the electricity is no longer considered
“renewable” or “green.” The REC product is what conveys the attributes and benefits
of the renewable electricity, not the electricity itself.
RECs serve the role of laying claim to and accounting for the associated attributes of renewable-
based generation. The REC and the associated underlying physical electricity take separate
pathways to the point of end use (see diagram). As renewable generators produce electricity,
they have a positive impact, reducing the need for fossil fuel-based generation sources to meet
consumer demand. RECs embody these positive environmental impacts and convey
these benefits to the REC owner.

Wikipedia: http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Sustainable_energy

Sustainable energy is the provision of energy that meets the needs of the present without
compromising the ability of future generations to meet their needs. Sustainable energy sources
include all renewable energy sources, such as hydroelectricity, solar energy, wind energy, wave
power, geothermal energy, bioenergy, and tidal power. It usually also includes technologies
designed to improve energy efficiency.

From: John Rogers
Sent: Wednesday, December 21, 2011 3:24 PM
To: MaryEllen O'Neiil

12/29/2011



Page 3 of 3

Subject: RE: RMLD

Great talking with you, MaryEillen. And thanks for the memo; that’s very helpful to see. | will definitely see about
attending on the 5t to weigh in. - John

John Rogers

Senior Energy Analyst

Co-Manager, Energy and Water Injtiative

Union of Concerned Scientists

Two Brattle Square, Cambridge, MA 02238

Tel: 617-301-8055

jrogers@ucsusa.org

Founded in 1968, the Union of Concerned Scientists is an independent, science-based nonprofit working for a healthy environment and a safer
world.

www.ucsusa.org | Join our citizen action network or expert network | Support our work | Join the conversation on our blog or follow us on
Facebook and Twitter.

From: MaryEllen O'Neill [mailto: maryellenoneill@hotmail.com]
Sent: Wednesday, December 21, 2011 2:36 PM

To: John Rogers

Subject: RMLD

Hi John,

Thanks so much for talking with me this morning. Under separate cover, I will send you the memo on RECs that
our energy services division (ESD) sent to Vinnie in October. This was the basis for the discussion at a CAB
meeting in October and at the Board's Power and Rate Committee meeting in early December.

A good source of information on finances and on kilowatt hour sales by type, by town, etc. can be found on the
RMLD website under financial statements. We do operate on a fiscal year, so the June 30, 2011 is a good
beginning.

Thanks again. When the agenda for the January S meeting is released, I will forward it to you.

Mary Ellen

12/29/2011



#3

Minutes of Meeting



CITIZENS' ADVISORY BOARD (CAB)
JOINT MEETING WITH RMLD BOARD of COMMISSIONERS POWER & RATE COMMITTEE
MEETING MINUTES
Regular Session

TIME: 7:00 P.M.
DATE: Monday, October 24, 2011
PLACE: Reading Municipal Light Department (RMLD) 230 Ash Street, Reading, MA,

GM Conference Room
PRESENT: CAB: A. Carakatsane, Chairman (Lynnfield), G. Hooper (Wilmington), T. Capobianco
(Reading)
RMLD Power and Rate Committee: R. Hahn, G. Snyder, R. Soli
RMLD Staff: V. Cameron, P. O'Leary, J. Parenteau, W. Seldon
ABSENT: J. Norton (North Reading), T. Ollila (Wilmington)

1. Call Meeting to Order — A. Carakatsane, Chairman
Chairman Carakatsane called the CAB meeting to order at 7:04 P.M.

Chairman Hahn calied the RMLD Board of Commissioners’ Power & Rate Committee meeting to order at
7:05 P.M.

2. The Retiring/Expiring of Renewable Energy Certificates (RECs)

Mr. Carakatsane explained that at the last CAB Meeting on October 4, a question was raised about what was
happening with the Renewable Energy Certificates (RECs). He added that there was knowledge that the
RECs are being let to expire and in the meantime, the Board as a whoie has not considered the issue. It
was a concern of the CAB, so this meeting was requested to discuss both sides of the issue.

Mr. Seidon wished to modify some comments made at the last meeting. He clarified that the RECs for the
Green Choice Program were aliowed to expire, because that is how the program was set up. The new RECs
that the Department is getting with the Swift River Project are not expired, and are being banked in the
RMLD's account.

Mr. Hahn stated that the Board has discussed the issue, but there is no unanimous consensus as to whether
the RECs shouid be retired. The Board asked Energy Services to come in with options, and the Board
allowed the RECs to be bought and expired under the Green Choice Program.

Ms. Parenteau added that there has been discussion at this Committee level to develop a sustainability
policy and address what to do with RECs in the policy. The Committee has also discussed whether or not to
utilize the Swift River RECs to satisfy the Green Choice RECs. A definitive answer has not arisen, but there
has been discussion.

Mr. Hahn noted that RECs could be sold on a retroactive basis so no value has been lost by sitting on them.

Ms. Parenteau said that the whole purpose of Green Choice is that the RMLD would go out, purchase RECs,
and retire them. Since then the RMLD found a purchase power agreement with Swift River, which is a whole
new set of RECs. With the new set of RECs a discussion on what should the policy be related to the RECs
and how to move forward is now a pertinent discussion.

Mr. Carakatsane asked how the RECs expire.
Ms. Parenteau passed out an informational page (from mass.gov), which gives a summary and an overview

of what is an RPS (Renewable Portfolio Standard), how the RECs work, how does a REC originate, and who
keeps track of a REC. It also notes that generation providers who are classified as renewables have the



Citizens’ Advisory Board Meeting Minutes 2
October 24, 2011

ability to sell those RECs. She added that within the current contract with Swift River, Swift River generates
the RECs, which go onto a GIS system.

Mr. Hahn explained that the GIS system maintains all the generator attributes. When a REC is generated, it
is tracked on the GIS system.

Mr. Hooper asked if the Swift River REC would expire.

Ms. Parenteau responded that once the REC is banked, it is the RMLD's, and that it only has a value if
someone wants to buy it. The RMLD has complete control over the REC, and it stays in our bank.

Ms. Snyder asked if the Green Choice RECs are retired annuaily.

Ms. Parenteau responded that the RECs are retired quarterly, and noted that there is a window of time that
generators have to put the information into the system in terms of transferring the RECs. For example, from
July through December, Quarter 1 RECs can be recorded.

Discussion ensued.

Mr. Capobianco noted that the RMLD is buying energy along with the RECs.

Mr. Hahn responded that was correct, and it goes into the RMLD's energy supply portfolio.

Mr. Carakatsane recalled that the basic idea behind the Green Choice Program was to raise money to invest
in renewables.

Mr. Hahn stated the RECs were bought because the RMLD wanted to say that it had some renewabie green
power.

Mr. Soli asked how residential solar customers couid get RECs.

Mr. Hahn explained that a customer wouid have to be a certain size to go into the GIS system, so a single
rooftop solar panel wouid not be eligible. He added that there are developers who will instail residential solar
panels, and they will take the RECs and bundle them to be big enough to go into the GIS system.

Ms. Parenteau commented that there are also aggregators that will go up to individual solar customers and
will start a contract with them to aggregate their solar to buy RECs. She noted that Jared Carpenter is
looking into the possibility of aggregating some of the individual solar customers and working with a third
party vendor who has the ability to do it.

Discussion ensued.

Mr. Carakatsane asked if a RPS policy had been developed.

Ms. Parenteau responded that Energy Services had a meeting with the Power and Rate Committee and
presented an outline of a sustainability policy.

Mr. Carakatsane asked if an energy portfolio standard and having RECs go hand in hand.
Ms. Parenteau stated that municipal utilities are exempt at the present time.
Mr. Hahn noted that the Board of Commissioners has directed the General Manager and the employees to

go find renewable projects, i.e., Concord Steam, Swift River Hydro, solar. Mr. Hahn believes the Board does
not want to opt into an RPS, but would rather set their own policy, which is more complicated than it appears.



Citizens' Advisory Board Meeting Minutes 3
October 24, 2011

He added that the initial step was the Green Choice Program: buy the REC and see if there is customer
interest; however, there was only tepid interest. He said that the Board must decide what percentage of the
portfolio should be renewablie taking into consideration that it is a policy issue, a rate issue, and a
generation/supply issue.

Mr. Carakatsane asked what is done with the RECs, besides sell them and get cash back to possibly
subsidize buying renewables.

Ms. Parenteau responded that if the RECs were sold, the RMLD would not be buying anything that is
“green”. She added that what makes this “green” is having the certificate attached to the megawatt hours
and keeping those together.

Mr. Carakatsane asked if you couid use them to buy more “green”.

Mr. Seldon explained that one of the options (as listed in a memo attached to the agenda packet) is if all or a
portion of the RECs are sold you can use the money for other sustainable projects. He commented that as
long as the Board sets the criteria, the Energy Services Division (ESD) couid do it.

Ms. Parenteau added that it is really a policy decision.

Mr. Hahn stated that if the RMLD wants to be called “green” then a piece of paper is needed that says it is
“green”.

Ms. Snyder said that it appears the power generation is completely separated from the “greenness” of it, so
you can sell the “greenness”.

Mr. Capobianco stated that all we are really talking about is whether or not we call ourselves “green”. If we
want to say we are “green”, the RECs get retired; if we want to take the money and invest it in other
renewable projects, then we have to say we are not green.

Mr. Seldon said that if you wanted to take it one step further, we could say that we are going to call so much
of the power green and retire a portion of the RECs, and sell the others for investment.

Discussion ensued.

Ms. Parenteau stated in her opinion that it is very important, no matter what option the Board may decide,
that it is communicated clearly that if the RECs are sold, that we do not call it “green”.

Mr. Soli commented that controlling the peak is important, and whatever the RMLD does, it should be
encouraging solar. He added that if it means the RECs shouid be sold to use that money to build solar, and
encourage solar, then that is what is important to him. Saying that you're green or not is not so important to
him, but protecting the environment by cutting down CO, is more important.

Mr. Hahn offered a different viewpoint. He agreed that controlling the peak load is important, but CO, comes
from generation throughout the year and is just as damaging in January as in August. He added that solar
only has a 16% capacity factor, wind 25%, water 30%, and hydro 30-60%. Per kW of capacity, hydro will
avoid most greenhouse gas. He believes they are all important and would not exclude hydro and wind, and
solar is the most expensive.

Mr. Carakatsane asked where is the Board and/or Committee in this discussion, policy or thoughts?

Mr. Hahn stated that at the last Committee meeting they had a lot of questions that they were trying to get
answered. He believes it comes down to whether the RMLD wants to be called “green” or not, and how



Citizens' Advisory Board Meeting Minutes 4
October 24, 2011

much more above market will we pay? He said they have not come to a quick resolution on this, because it
is not a simple solution.

Mr. Hooper said that in his opinion although we are talking about “green”, it makes more sense to seli the
RECs and invest in more renewable energy.

Mr. Capobianco's opinion was to sell the RECs and use that money to bridge the gap for more renewabie
energy at a more reasonable cost, and increase the amount of renewable energy within the portfolio. He
agrees with Mr. Soli regarding solar panels, however, you don't get as much bang for the buck.

Mr. Hahn stated that if RMLD is not worried about its current portfolio being “green”, then don't buy
renewables, buy conventional power supply, and take that money that is saved and invest directly in the
RMLD's service territory. Mr. Hahn (own opinion) does not believe the RMLD shouid buy renewable power,
sell the RECs, and call itseif "green”.

Discussion ensued.

Mr. Cameron stated that he doesn't believe a project is dead forever with respect to “green”. He believes
that at a certain point in time you can stop selling the RECs and retire them. He added that the Department
does not have an RPS yet, and thinks the legisiature may in the future have municipals come under an RPS.
When that happens, municipals will be scrambling. After some research, he found that those municipals that
do have renewables are selling them. If the RMLD comes under an RPS, he would hope that the RMLD
would have been proactive enough to have enough potentially green power in their portfolio so that if RMLD
stops seilling RECs, the RMLD wouid meet that portfolio standard. He believes that it is a question of
philosophy, and agrees that Mr. Hahn is correct that if we sell the RECs, we cannot call ourselves “green”.
He feels that the Department should do a middie of road concept in acquiring green power....sell the RECs
and relieve some of the cost. Mr. Cameron added that the RMLD should keep in mind that the RPS is now
for the investor Owned Utilities (IOUs), as the Department adds more potentially green power to the portfolio
so that it can be there if and when a RPS is imposed. He does not disagree with Mr. Hahn, but wants to be
conscious of the fact that the RMLD shouid be where it may need to be in the future with respect to an RPS.

Mr. Carakatsane commented that he sees Mr. Hahn's point, however, at the moment he is not against selling
a portion of the RECs to try to recoup some of the expenses. He feels there is an obligation to the
ratepayers to keep costs down.

Mr. Carakatsane explained that tonight was a gathering of information to discuss the philosophies of both
sides. He said that perhaps after the Committee comes up with a draft, both the CAB and the Power & Rate
Committee could meet jointly again.

Discussion ensued.

Mr. Soli had a question about the banking of RECs asking if the RECs have a shelf life.

Ms. Parenteau would get the information to Mr. Soli.

Discussion ensued.

Mr. Carakatsane said it sounds as though an annual discussion should take place on what to do with the
RECs.

Ms. Parenteau would like to get direction from the Board and the CAB in the form of a policy.

Mr. Hahn said that ESD couldn't move forward until the Board and the CAB decide whether the RMLD is
going to be “green” or not.



Citizens' Advisory Board Meeting Minutes 5
October 24, 2011

Ms. Snyder stated that in the conversations she has had with people from the energy office in Rhode Island,
they were very interested in solar because of the issue of summer peaks. Ms. Snyder likes Option 2 with
some of the RECs being sold and those funds used for municipal buildings getting solar.

Mr. Hahn would like to see the costs in a numerical analysis. If the Department did sell the RECs, how much
money would we raise and would it make a difference? He stated that without some kind of numerical
analysis, it is just guessing.

Mr. Capobianco stated that one of the reasons for holding on to the RECs is because we may be subject to
an RPS in the future, and he wanted to know if he were correct.

Mr. Cameron said that if the RECS could be sold, and then if we do have a RPS apply to us, the Department
would stop selling the RECs and then they would count as “green”.

Mr. Hahn explained that the Department would buy RECs from Swift River and whatever RECs the RMLD
gets in 2012 or 2013, the Department would sell. Then come 2015, the RMLD stops selling them. He said
that doesn’t mean that those RECs are banked all along the way, and added that RECs can’t be sold and
banked.

Mr. Capobianco said then why not sell them until the Department is forced to retain them.

Ms. Snyder and Mr. Hahn responded that the Department bought them to be "green”.

Mr. Capobianco said they could be sold to subsidize the purchase of more green energy.

Mr. Hahn’s question is how much money will be received if they are sold, and how much will the Department
be able to do that is “green”.

Mr. Carakatsane referred to Table 2 in the memo regarding market value.
Discussion ensued.

Mr. Carakatsane said that he encourages discussion by both Boards and the Committee on this issue, and
for the Committee to perhaps develop a draft policy for review. He would welcome a financial analysis.

Mr. Soli commented that the options listed in the memo are good, and added that there should be a 2B.
outlining what to do with the money.

Mr. Parenteau stated that ESD would provide more numbers or any other information the Boards would like.
Mr. Hahn noted that if the RMLD decides to sell RECs, he does not see how he could approve buying
another Swift River. He feels RMLD would be taking money out of ratepayers' pockets and not be any

“greener” than before.

Mr. Carakatsane asked if the Committee had anything on the table such as a meeting in the future on this
issue.

Mr. Hahn stated that it will be brought up at their next meeting, and feels the issue should be decided quickly.

Ms. Snyder asked if the joint meeting of the Power and Rate and the Policy Committees was because of this
issue.



Citizens’ Advisory Board Meeting Minutes 6
October 24, 2011

Mr. Cameron responded that there were still some questions on the policy, so it was not ready to go to the
Policy Committee. He feels this issue goes hand in hand with the policy. He said that the policy would have
to go back to the Power and Rate Committee again for review, and keep the CAB apprised.

Mr. Hahn asked the CAB what option they liked.

Mr. Carakatsane responded that he likes Option 2, which would include a policy, perhaps a 2B, although he
is concerned about not enough opportunity.

Mr. Hahn also wanted to know where those prices are going in the future. He added that the outlook of
supply and demand is heavily in favor of supply, and if Cape Wind comes in the state will be awash with
RECs. The RECs won’t be worth much.

Mr. Carakatsane said he prefers a year-to-year approach, because what may make sense now may not
make sense 18 months or two years from now.

Mr. Soli suggested having specific review dates and/or periods in the policy.

3. Adjournment

A motion was made at 8:15 P.M. by Mr. Hooper and seconded by Mr. Capobianco to adjourn the CAB
meeting.

Motion carried unanimously 3:0:0.

A motion was made at 8:16 P.M. by Ms. Snyder and seconded by Mr. Soli to adjourn the RMLD Board of
Commissioners Power & Rate Committee meeting.
Motion carried unanimously 3:0:0.

Respectfully submitted,

Arthur Carakatsane, Chairman
/pmo Minutes approved on:




#6

Net Metering Rate

a. Residential



Town of Reading, Massachusetts MDPU #
Municipal Light Department

Residential Customer Owned Renewable Generation Under 20 kW

Available in:
Reading, Lynnfield Center, North Reading, and Wilmington

Applicable to:

Individual residential customers for all domestic uses. This rate and the Terms and
Conditions contained therein govern certain renewable generation facilities located on a
residential customer’s premise, where the facility is owned or leased by the residential
customer, located in the customer premise and used solely for the purpose of the
customer’s own consumption.

Rates and Billings:
During a billing period the customer will be billed the then applicable rate for all
electricity used by the customer according to the RMLD billing meter.

If, during a billing period, the customer’s facility feeds back excess electricity onto the
RMLD system the rate credited to the customer for excess electricity fed into RMLD’s
distribution system shall be equal to the then applicable RMLD’s Monthly Fuel Charge,
which may be adjusted by the Standard Fuel Charge Clause, for the billing period in
which the credit was generated.

The RMLD may impose additional Terms and Conditions, as it deems necessary, in its
sole discretion, for the protection of its distribution system, service territory, or its
customers.

General Terms:
Service hereunder is subject to the General Terms and Conditions which are incorporated
herein and are a part of this rate.

Rate Filed:
Effective: On Billing on or After
Filed by: Vincent F. Cameron Jr, General Manager



Town of Reading, Massachusetts MDPU #
Municipal Light Department

Attachment 1
Application for Residential Customer-Owned Generation Under 20 KW

Contact Information
Legal Name and address of Interconnecting Customer applicant

RMLD Customer (print):
Name and Title of Individual Filing Application:
Address of Interconnection Facility:

City: State Zip Code:

Telephone (Office): (Cell):

Facsimile Number: E-Mail Address:

Alternative Contact Information (e.g., system installation contractor or coordinating company)
Name:

Mailing Address:

City: State: Zip Code:

Telephone (Office): (Cell):

Facsimile Number: E-Mail Address:

Facility Information

RMLD Account Number (required — on bill)
Meter Number(s) (required — on bill)

Inverter Manufacturer: Model Name & #: Quantity Used: __
Nameplate Rating: (kW) (kVA) (AC Volts) Single or Three Phase
System Design Capacity: kW) (kVA)

Electrical Contractor: Name, address, phone # and contact name

Prime Mover. Photovoltaic 0 FuelCell0  Qualifying Facility:
Energy Source:Solar 1 Wind 0 HydroO Natural Gas0O  Other:
UL1741 Listed? Yes ___No

One line diagram attached? Yes __ No

Estimated Installation Date: Estimated In-Service Date:

Rate Filed:
Effective:
Filed by:



Town of Reading, Massachusetts MDPU #
Municipal Light Department

Attachment 1
Application for Residential Customer-Owned Generation Under 20 kW

Customer Signature

I hereby certify that, to the best of my knowledge, all of the information provided in this application is true
and I have reviewed and agree to the RMLD’s Tariff MDPU #___ and Terms and Conditions for
Commercial Customer-Owned Generation Under 20 kW.

Interconnecting Customer Signature Date
Title:

Please attach manufacturer's document showing UL 1741 listing to this document and mail to the following
address.

Reading Municipal Light Department

PO Box 150

Reading, Massachusetts 01867-0250

Approval to Install Facility (For RMLD use only)

Installation of the Facility is approved contingent upon the Terms and Conditions of this Agreement, and
agreement to any system modifications, if required

(Are system modifications required? Yes No To be Determined)
RMLD Signature: Title: Date:
RMLD UA Number: RMLD waives inspection/witness test? Yes_ No
Rate Filed:
Effective:

Filed by:



Town of Reading, Massachusetts MDPU #
Municipal Light Department

Attachment 2
Certificate of Completion for Residential Customer-Owned Generation Under 20 kW
Certificate of Completion

Installation Information
Interconnecting Customer (Print):

Title:

Mailing Address:

Location of Facility (if different from above):

City: State: Zip Code:
Telephone (Daytime): (Evening):

Facsimile Number: E-Mail Address:

Account # (required - on bill) Meter # (required — on bill)

Electrician or Electrical Installation Contractor:

Business Name: Contact Name (Print)
Mailing Address:

City: State: Zip Code:
Telephone (Daytime): (Evening):

Facsimile Number: E-Mail Address:

License number:

RMLD Date of Installation Approval: Signature

RMLD Utility Authorization Number

Inspection:

The system has been installed and inspected in compliance with the local Building/Electrical Code of

(City/County)

Signed (local Electrical Wiring Inspector),

Name (printed):

Date:

Rate Filed:
Effective:
Filed by:



Town of Reading, Massachusetts MDPU #
Municipal Light Department

Attachment 2
Certificate of Completion for Residential Customer-Owned Generation
Certificate of Completion

As a condition of interconnection you are required to send by USPS mail or Fax a copy of this form along
with a copy of the signed electrical permit to:

Reading Municipal Light Department
P.0.BOX 150
READING MA 01867

Received by RMLD

Date & Initial

Rate Filed:
Effective:
Filed by:



Town of Reading, Massachusetts MDPU #
Municipal Light Department

RMLD Terms & Conditions for Residential Customer-Owned Generation Under 20 kW

This tariff and the terms and conditions contained herein govern generation facilities located on a residential customer’s
premises, where such facilities are owned or leased by the residential customer, located on the customer’s premises,
and used solely for the purpose of the customer’s own consumption.

Availability: Net metering is available to generation facilities owned or leased by a residential customer, located on
the residential customer’s property where such customer currently receives service from RMLD, for the purpose of
offsetting all or part of that customer’s own electric power requirements and capable of producing no more than 20 KW
from customer wned sources (“Facility”). The use of a Facility for providing service to a third party is strictly
prohibited. Under no circumstance shall output from the Facility be provided or credited to any third party. The
availability of net metering to a residential customer that owns or leases a Facility (“Customer”} is subject to the terms
and conditions contained in this tariff. RMLD’s General Terms and Conditions shall also apply to service under this
tariff and Terms and Conditions, where not inconsistent with any specific provision hereof. In its sole discretion,
RMLD may limit the cumulative generating capacity of all Facilities in its service territory.

1. Construction of the Facility. The Customer may proceed to construct the Facility once the RMLD has received the
completed Attachment I - Application for Residential Customer-Owned Generation Under 20 kW and said application
has been approved by the RMLD. The Application shall be accompanied by a one-line diagram of the proposed
Facility, and the application fee as determined by RMLD. The RMLD will not approve any such application if it
determines that the Facility will have an adverse impact on RMLD’s system or does not or will not comply with any of
RMLD’s Terms and Conditions. The Facility’s system capacity is subject to RMLD inspection and approval. The
Facility shall be designed, constructed and operated in a manner that causes it to meet or exceed all applicable safety
and electrical standards, including but not limited to the Massachusetts Building Code, the Massachusetts Department
of Public Utilities’ regulations, the National Electric Code, the National Electrical Safety Code, Institute of Electronic,
and Electrical Engineers (IEEE), United Laboratories (UL) and RMLD’s General Terms and Conditions for Service.
The Customer is responsible for all permits and regulatory approvals necessary for construction and operation of the
Facility.

2. Interconnection and Operation. The Customer may operate Facility and interconnect with the RMLD’s system
only after the following has occurred:

2.1  Municipal Inspection. Upon completing construction, the Interconnecting Customer will cause the Facility
to be inspected or otherwise certified and/or approved by the local wiring inspector.

2.2 Certificate of Completion. The Customer shall return the Certificate of Completion appearing as
Attachment 2 — Certification of Completion for Residential Customer-Owned Generation Under 20 kW, to the RMLD,
P.O. Box 150, Reading, MA 01867.

2.3  RMLD Right to Inspection. Within ten (10) business days after the receipt of the Certificate of Completion,
the RMLD shall, upon reasonable notice, and at a mutually convenient time, conduct an inspection of the Facility to
ensure that all equipment has been properly installed, and that all electric connections have been made in accordance
with the RMLD’s requirements including these Terms and Conditions and RMLD’s General Terms and Conditions.
The RMLD has the right to disconnect the Facility in the event of improper installation or failure to return the
Certificate of Completion to the RMLD.

24  Interconnection Metering/Wiring. The Customer shall furnish and have installed, if not already in place,
the necessary meter socket and wiring in accordance with all applicable safety and electrical standards.

2. Payment of Any Upgrades. The Customer shall be responsible for paying RMLD for any upgrades to
RMLD’s system necessitated by the connection of the Facility to RMLD’s system. The Customer is also responsible
for equipment expenses including net meters necessary to accommodate the Facility as set forth herein.

3. Safe Operation and Maintenance., The Customer shall be solely responsible for constructing, operating,
maintaining, and repairing the Facility in a safe manner. The RMLD may temporarily disconnect the Facility to
facilitate planned or emergency RMLD work. In addition, RMLD may disconnect the Facility from its system at any
time that RMLD determines, in its sole discretion, that the safety and reliability of RMLD’s system may be
compromised by the operation of the Facility. In the event that Facility damages RMLD’s system, the Customer shall
be solely responsible for all costs associated with the repair and/or replacement of damaged portion of RMLD’s system
and/or equipment.

4. Metering and Billing. All Facilities constructed, installed, inspected, operated and maintained in accordance with
these Terms and Conditions qualify for net metering as follows:

Rate Filed:
Effective:
Filed by:

1215948_1



Town of Reading, Massachusetts MDPU #
Municipal Light Department

4.1 RMLD Installs Net Meter. RMLD shall furnish and install a meter capable of net metering within ten (10)
business days after the inspection of the Facility set forth in Section 2.3.

5. Limitation of Liability, Indemnification and Insurance. RMLD shall not be liable to the Customer or any other
person for any loss, injury, damage, casualty, fees or penalties, asserted on the basis of any theory, arising from, related
to or caused by the construction, installation, operation,, maintenance or repair of the Facility, and associated
equipment and wiring, except to the extent of its own gross negligence or willful misconduct, but only to the extent
permitted by law. Neither by inspection nor non-rejection nor in any other way does RMLD give any warranty,
expressed or implied as to the adequacy, safety or other characteristics of any equipment, wiring or devices, installed
on the Customer’s premises, including the Facility. The Customer shall indemnify and hold harmless RMLD, its board
members, managers, employees, agents, consultants, attorneys and assigns from and against any and all losses, claims,
damages, costs, demands, fines, judgments, penalties, payments and liabilities, together with any costs and expenses
(including attorneys’ fees) incurred in connection with, resulting from, relating to or arising out of the construction,
operation, maintenance and repair of the Facility, including the Customer’s failure to comply with these Terms and
Conditions or any abnormality or failure in the operation of the Facility, or any adverse impact to RMLD’s system or
its other customers. The Customer shall maintain sufficient insurance to cover any damage to RMLD’s system caused
by the construction, operation, maintenance and repair the Facility and shall name RMLD as additional insured. The
Customer shall provide RMLD with proof of satisfactory insurance upon request by RMLD.

6. Termination. Service may be terminated under the following conditions.

6.1 By Interconnecting Customer. The Customer may terminate service under this tariff by providing written
notice to RMLD.

6.2 By RMLD. The RMLD may terminate service under this tariff (1) if the Facility fails to operate for any
consecutive twelve month period or (2) in the event that the Facility impairs the operation of RMLD’s electric
distribution system or service to other customers or materially impairs the local circuit and the Customer does not cure
the impairment at its sole expense.

7. Assignment/Transfer of Ownership of the Facility. In the event that a transfer of ownership of the Facility to a
new Customer occurs, the new Customer must file Attachment 1 — Application for Residential Customer Owned
Generation and the application must be approved by RMLD.

8. Rates and Billing:

During a billing period, if the customer uses more electricity than its premise feeds back into RMLD’s system, then the
customer will be billed based on the rate applicable to that customer’s class of service under the applicable RMLD
tariff.

If, during a billing period, the customer’s Facility feeds excess electricity into the RMLD’s distribution system the rate
credited to the customer for excess energy fed into RMLD’s distribution system shall be equal to the amount of kWh
fed into the RMLD’s distribution system multiplied by the then applicable RMLD’s Standard Fuel Charge Clause.

RMLD may impose additional Terms and Conditions, as it deems necessary, in its sole discretion, for the protection of
its distribution system, service territory, or its customers.

Rate Filed:
Effective:
Filed by:

1215948_1



#6

Net Metering Rate

b. Commercial



Town of Reading, Massachusetts MDPU #
Municipal Light Department

Commercial/Industrial Customer-Owned Generation

Available in:
Reading, Lynnfield Center, North Reading, and Wilmington

Applicable to:

Individual commercial/industrial customers for all commercial uses. This rate and the
Terms and Conditions contained therein govern certain renewable generation facilities
located on a commercial/industrial customer’s premise, where the facility is owned or
leased by the commercial/industrial customer, located in the customer premise and used
solely for the purpose of the customer’s own consumption.

Rates and Billing:

During a billing period the customer will be billed the then applicable rate for all
electricity delivered by the RMLD and used by the customer according to the RMLD’s
billing meter.

If, during a billing period, the customer’s Facility feeds excess electricity into the
RMLD’s distribution system the rate credited to the customer for excess energy fed into
RMLD’s distribution system shall be equal to the amount of kWh fed into the RMLD’s
distribution system multiplied by the then applicable RMLD’s Standard Fuel Charge
Clause, for the billing period in which the credit was generated.

The RMLD may impose additional Terms and Conditions, as it deems necessary, in its
sole discretion, for the protection of its distribution system, service territory, or its
customers.

General Terms:
Service hereunder is subject to the General Terms and Conditions which are incorporated
herein and are a part of this rate.

Rate Filed:
Effective: On Billing on or After
Filed by: Vincent F. Cameron Jr, General Manager

6B



Town of Reading, Massachusetts MDPU #
Municipal Light Department

Attachment 1
Application for Commercial Customer-Owned Generation

Contact Information
Legal Name and address of Interconnecting Customer applicant

RMLD Customer (print):
Name and Title of Individual Filing Application:
Address of Interconnection Facility:

City: State Zip Code:

Telephone (Office): (Cell):

Facsimile Number: E-Mail Address:

Alternative Contact Information (e.g., system installation contractor or coordinating company)
Nare:

Mailing Address:

City: State: Zip Code:

Telephone (Office): (Cell):

Facsimile Number: E-Mail Address:

Facility Information

RMLD Account Number (required — on bill)
Meter Number(s) (required — on bill)

Inverter Manufacturer: Model Name & #: Quantity Used: __
Nameplate Rating: (kW) (kVA) (AC Volts) Single or Three Phase
System Design Capacity: kW) (kVA)

Electrical Contractor: Name, address, phone # and contact name

Prime Mover. Photovoltaic 1 FuelCell I = IC Engine O Other:
Energy Source: Solar (1 Wind O Hydro O Natural Gas 0 Other:
UL1741 Listed? Yes _ No

One line diagram attached? Yes  No

Estimated Installation Date: Estimated In-Service Date:

Rate Filed:
Effective:
Filed by:



Town of Reading, Massachusetts MDPU #
Municipal Light Department

Attachment 1
Application for Commercial Customer-Owned Generation

Customer Signature

I hereby certify that, to the best of my knowledge, all of the information provided in this application is true
and I have reviewed and agree to the RMLD’s Tariff MDPU # __ and Terms and Conditions for
Commercial Customer-Owned Generation

Interconnecting Customer Signature Date
Title:
Please attach manufacturer's document showing UL1741 listing to this document and mail to;

Reading Municipal Light Department

Attn: Engineering Department
230 Ash Street
Reading, MA 01867

Approval to Install Facility (For RMLD use only)

Installation of the Facility is approved contingent upon the terms and conditions of this Agreement, and
agreement to any system modifications, if required

(Are system modifications required? Yes No To be Determined).
RMLD Signature: Title: Date:
RMLD UA Number: RMLD waives inspection/witness test? Yes _ No
Rate Filed:

Effective:

Filed by:



Town of Reading, Massachusetts MDPU #
Municipal Light Department

Attachment 2
Certificate of Completion for Commercial Customer-Owned Generation
Certificate of Completion

Installation Information
Interconnecting Customer (Print):

Title:

Mailing Address:

Location of Facility (if different from above):

City: State: Zip Code:
Telephone (Daytime): (Evening):

Facsimile Number: E-Mail Address:

Account # (required - on bill) Meter # (required — on bill)

Electrician or Electrical Installation Contractor:

Business Name: Contact Name (Print)
Mailing Address:

City: State: Zip Code:
Telephone (Daytime): (Evening):

Facsimile Number: E-Mail Address:

License number:

RMLD Date of Installation Approval: Signature

RMLD Utility Authorization Number

Inspection:

The system has been installed and inspected in compliance with the local Building/Electrical Code of

(City/County)

Signed (local Electrical Wiring Inspector),

Name (printed):

Date:

Rate Filed:
Effective:

Filed by:
1209495_1



Town of Reading, Massachusetts MDPU #
Municipal Light Department

Attachment 2
Certificate of Completion for Commercial Customer-Owned Generation
Certificate of Completion

As a condition of interconnection you are required to send by USPS mail or Fax a copy of this form along
with a copy of the signed electrical permit to:

RMLD
P.0. BOX 150
READING MA 01867-0250
Received by RMLD

Date & Initial

Rate Filed:
Effective:
Filed by:
1209495 _1



Town of Reading, Massachusetts MDPU # 226
Municipal Light Department

RMLD Terms and Conditions for Commercial Customer-Owned Generation

This tariff and the terms and conditions contained herein govern certain renewable generation facilities located on a
commercial customer’s (i.e., a customer currently receiving service from RMLD pursuant to one of RMLD’s
commercial or industrial tariffs) premises, where such facilities are owned or leased by the commercial customer,
located on the customer’s premises and used solely for the purpose of the customer’s own consumption.

Availability: Net metering is available to generation facilities owned or leased by a commercial customer, located on
the commercial customer’s property where such customer currently receives service from RMLD, for the purpose of
offsetting all or part of that customer’s own electric power requirements from Customer-Owned Generation
(“Facility”). The use of a Facility for providing service to a third party is strictly prohibited. Under no circumstance
shall output from the Facility be provided or credited to any third party. The availability of net metering to a
commercial customer that owns or leases a Facility (“Customer”) is subject to the terms and conditions contained in
this tariff RMLD’s General Terms and Conditions shall also apply to service under this tariff and Terms and
Conditions, where not inconsistent with any specific provision hereof. In its sole discretion, RMLD may limit the
cumulative generating capacity of all Facilities in its service territory.

1. Construction of the Facility. The Customer may proceed to construct the Facility once the RMLD has received the
completed Attachment | - Application for Commercial Customer-Owned Generation and said application has been
approved by the RMLD. The Application shall be accompanied by a one-line diagram of the proposed Facility, and the
application fee as determined by RMLD. The RMLD will not approve any such application if it determines that the
Facility will have an adverse impact on RMLD’s system or does not or will not comply with any of RMLD’s Terms
and Conditions. The Facility’s system capacity is subject to RMLD inspection and approval. The Facility shall be
designed, constructed and operated in a manner that causes it to meet or exceed all applicable safety and electrical
standards, including but not limited to the Massachusetts Building Code, the Massachusetts Department of Public
Utilities’ regulations, the National Electric Code, the National Electrical Safety Code, IEEE, UL and RMLD’s General
Terms and Conditions for Service. The Customer is responsible for all permits and regulatory approvals necessary for
construction and operation of the Facility.

2. Interconnection and Operation. The Customer may operate Facility and interconnect with the RMLD’s system
only after the following has occurred:

2.1  Municipal Inspection. Upon completing construction, the Interconnecting Customer will cause the Facility
to be inspected or otherwise certified and/or approved by the local wiring inspector.

2.2 Certificate of Completion. The Customer shall return the Certificate of Completion appearing as
Attachment 2 — Certification of Completion for Commercial Customer-Owned Generation, to the RMLD, P.O. Box
150, Reading, MA 01867-0250.

2.3 RMLD Right to Inspection. Within ten (10) business days after the receipt of the Certificate of Completion,
the RMLD shall, upon reasonable notice, and at a mutually convenient time, conduct an inspection of the Facility to
ensure that all equipment has been properly installed, and that all electric connections have been made in accordance
with the RMLD’s requirements including these Terms and Conditions and RMLD’s General Terms and Conditions.
The RMLD has the right to disconnect the Facility in the event of improper installation or failure to return the
Certificate of Completion to the RMLD.

2.4  Interconnection Metering/Wiring. The Customer shall furnish and have installed, if not already in place,
the necessary meter socket and wiring in accordance with all applicable safety and electrical standards

2.5 Payment of Any Upgrades. The Customer shall be responsible for paying RMLD for any upgrades to
RMLD’s system necessitated by the connection of the Facility to RMLD’s system. The Customer is also responsible
for equipment expenses including net meters necessary to accommodate the Facility as set forth herein.

3. Safe Operation and Maintenance. The Customer shall be solely responsible for constructing, operating,
maintaining, and repairing the Facility in a safe manner. The RMLD may temporarily disconnect the Facility to
facilitate planned or emergency RMLD work. In addition, RMLD may disconnect the Facility from its system at any
time that RMLD determines, in its sole discretion, that the safety and reliability of RMLD’s system may be
compromised by the operation of the Facility. In the event that Facility damages RMLD’s system, the Customer shall
be solely responsible for all costs associated with the repair and/or replacement of damaged portion of RMLD’s system
and/or equipment.

4. Metering and Billing. All Facilities constructed, installed, inspected, operated and maintained in accordance with
these Terms and Conditions qualify for net metering as follows:

Rate Filed:
Effective:
Filed by:

1215948 _1



Town of Reading, Massachusetts MDPU # 226
Municipal Light Department

4.1 RMLD Installs Net Meter. RMLD shall furnish and install a meter capable of net metering within ten (10)
business days after the inspection of the Facility set forth in Section 2.3, above, if such meter is not in place, at
Customer’s expense.

5. Limitation of Liability, Indemnification and Insurance. RMLD shall not be liable to the Customer or any other
person for any loss, injury, damage, casualty, fees or penalties, asserted on the basis of any theory, arising from, related
to or caused by the construction, installation, operation,, maintenance or repair of the Facility, and associated
equipment and wiring, except to the extent of its own gross negligence or willful misconduct, but only to the extent
permitted by law. Neither by inspection nor non-rejection nor in any other way does RMLD give any warranty,
expressed or implied as to the adequacy, safety or other characteristics of any equipment, wiring or devices, installed
on the Customer's premises, including the Facility. The Customer shall indemnify and hold harmless RMLD, its board
members, managers, employees, agents, consultants, attorneys and assigns from and against any and all losses, claims,
damages, costs, demands, fines, judgments, penalties, payments and liabilities, together with any costs and expenses
(including attorneys’ fees) incurred in connection with, resulting from, relating to or arising out of the construction,
operation, maintenance and repair of the Facility, including the Customer’s failure to comply with these Terms and
Conditions or any abnormality or failure in the operation of the Facility, or any adverse impact to RMLD’s system or
its other customers. The Customer shall maintain sufficient insurance to cover any damage to RMLD’s system caused
by the construction, operation, maintenance and repair the Facility and shall name RMLD as additional insured. The
Customer shall provide RMLD with proof of satisfactory insurance upon request by RMLD.

6. Termination. Service may be terminated under the following conditions.

6.1 By Interconnecting Customer. The Customer may terminate service under this tariff by providing written
notice to RMLD.

6.2 By RMLD. The RMLD may terminate service under this tariff (1) if the Facility fails to operate for any
consecutive twelve month period or (2) in the event that the Facility impairs the operation of RMLD’s electric
distribution system or service to other customers or materially impairs the local circuit and the Customer does not cure
the impairment at its sole expense.

7. Assignment/Transfer of Ownership of the Facility. In the event that a transfer of ownership of the Facility to a
new Customer occurs, the new Customer must file Attachment 1 — Application for Commercial Customer Owned
Generation and the application has been approved by RMLD.

8. Rates and Billing:
During a billing period the customer will be billed the then applicable rate for all electricity delivered by the RMLD
and used by the customer according to the RMLD’s billing meter.

If, during a billing period, the customer’s Facility feeds excess electricity into the RMLD’s distribution system the rate
credited to the customer for excess energy fed into RMLD’s distribution system shall be equal to the amount of kWh
fed into the RMLD’s distribution system multiplied by the then applicable RMLD’s Standard Fuel Charge Clause, for
the billing period in which the credit was generated.

The RMLD may impose additional Terms and Conditions, as it deems necessary, in its sole discretion, for the
protection of its distribution system, service territory, or its customers.

Rate Filed:
Effective:
Filed by:

1215948_1



#7

CAB Rotation Schedule

(for RMLD Board Meetings)



January S, 2012

2012 CAB MEMBER ROTATION SCHEDULE

for
attendance at the RMLD Board Meetings (usually 4™ Wednesday of the month)

January 25, 2012 July
February August
March September
April October
May November

June December



#8

Other Items for Discussion

2012 Legislative Rally



P m.u.LI..lm.l.._ -

WV [ _._

ﬁwmh,u@omi 5: E%éﬁ oL R ] ‘2 i -5°q ‘uolBuysEAA. | 1910H 1BAH puBID) | pL-g| YdJeiN

1.:9:3 I .e._ ; TR :
.%\mo:mEonEwm CO:\m_OOw@Q L®>>Oﬂ_ O__D_Jﬂ_ C@OC@C\_,Q ‘39 nﬂammco U

LB A .580@ agnd Jo s)sa1ou o) SurourApe
= M _H__J_ - __ | =TI SS900NS PANUBUO0d MO 0] [BNUISSI SI
_ zosm&oﬁmm INOX “SS9001d SUnetI-UOISIOap

ods Yo

" - .u.k
=] iy

1._ _ A _\% ,_ i 9} UL JUSTHSAJOAUL SISQUUSULLINO SJENIOE]
AR A o) mto [2 I00 JO moo&.aéoo AU St AR

bﬁ%& BBom 93:@ 210l mo $59001S WLIS)-3UO]
o& 8 ~o>2 Eo@om o& Je "onoe [eanrjod Jo
US0921 3UO[ SeY Vdd V.,




‘BI0 AULBPEIY VY Mmm JiSiA ses)d ‘sbul

~19J40 S}} PUE AWBPEDY YddY 8l UO SEJap jirj 40
‘Spasu Jey}
1ns 1ey; sabues seoud pue Spew.o) ul sjuswalnbal
uoneyILeD pue sieob buiuesy Aead sey) j9sw O}
wiayy 10§ Ayunypioddo ue Buipinoid syym spusialnbal
Ai038inBas pue seibojouyos) Ansnpul Buinow Apides JO
1se8Iqe AB;S seafoydwa Aun ouioseie sdpy Awepedy
VddV 8yl ‘spoyew Aeaep o AjpueA e ybnoay | ‘spun
UONBONPe BUINURUOD UIES UBD JEUILLIBS AlfeH-aid
ur sjuediosed ‘UORIPPE U “UOHBONDa [Buoissejoid
10| 82.n0saJ 8jejdwod s.semod oyqnd Awspedy
VddV 8yl Jo 1ed s Aliey 8nesiba vddy 2102 oYL
Awoapedy vddy a4 woqy

‘suoijebajep euoissalbuco
21841 yum sBuiiea 1oy |IiH [0NdeD O} [pABL} SBIBe00ADE
Jamod aygnd “sepiealq Aley snieisiba auy Bumojiod
v 1 ydsey Aepsaupom

mzc.ﬂm
ssuruud

711 QINGIP UBRION]

1osuodg yosyoun HYl

Josuods isepieaig Aljey e

YOuAT |13
22, BoLIdUIY joyueg

sosuodg-uondasay Buliodiam

“SO1ILULLOD UONoR [Bol)|

-0d s,yddV Uim diay siey) 10} wayy yueyy o} uondesas
e Aolus S10JNQUILI0D Dydlemod ‘Buiuas auy | ‘1310
neiH pue.s) ayl 18 vddy Aq paisoy senssi olioeds uo
sBuyauq Aoliod pushe pue |IiH [oudeD uo suonebeisp
[EUOISSaIBUOD 19U} UIIM 19BLU (1M Sapusjie ‘ucoulsye
ay Ul ‘fendeo s,uoieu no u uonenys [eaod pue Aep
au JO SBNSS| 8y} LU0 SNO0Y [ OUM Jadeads ajouke e
YUM ‘UoByouN| BBRILULLOY H8T] BUl AQ PaMO|I0} St SIYL
‘saioljod asey Jo uondope Ajreuy pue ‘sejolod pasod
-oud mau Jo uoissnosip B Aq pamojjo} epusbe anes!
-Ba) [eJopa) S,VddY Moawal [im Buiuiow ayy ul Bunssw
sauwon (Y suonniosay pue anelsiBa sul

€1 youe ‘Aepsany

‘uondadas Buiodem sy pue ‘seu

-1was aoualeuoo-aid ‘sbunsew diysiepes) 10} [910H
neAH puels ay) 1e seyieb seyeconpe Jemod d1gnd
21 yoley ‘Aepuopy

weaboad fremunjaad

2@ ‘uojbupysepy w yoedun ue

oAeYy sonunwwod Jjamod snqnd diay 0}
Jomod 9A09]102 2y} pue ‘SuoiddUUOD
a8y} ‘saaunosada 9y} sopinoad vddy

‘2 10g W ssaibuo)

Aqg palepisuod ag abeoed xe) Abisua ue pinoys

s108loud ABisus ues|d pue ajgemauUal BI0W UMO

pUB pIINg SaIN PAUMO-1BWINSUOD djay O} salin
1amod oygnd 01 seAuaoul ejgesedwod Bupuedxy W

pue ‘Ansnpur Ayinn ouioae
8y} pue Juswuianob [elepa) ay) usamiag Uoiied
-luNwiwod Buueyus pue ‘Aesuspun aJe ey} sLoys
Aunoaes-18g4o JuaLnd ayy Buizubooas ‘yomawe.y
DHT4/DHIN WaLNO 8y} UO JINg S! uoe|siBa)

Aue jeuyy Buunsus Aqg Ajunoss-1eqho Buissaippy B

{S49LUNSUOD Jauaq 0}
uonesado pue ubisap Ly} Buiwiojul pue siexew
Ayounosie sjesajoym aul Jo Jubisieno Buiseasou| B

‘suondo [an} Jo oljopod asisAIp e uejuew

0} Jep.o ur uoie.ssusb semod oygnd Bunoeduw

suonenBail (Yg3) Aouaby uonosl0ld [ejusLuuonAug
J0 mioyaid ayy Buiziuouwwrey pue Buuweans B

‘suonenobau 1e6png
[esapa) BuioBuo sy} Ul suoneasIuILPY Bunaxsen
18MO( [BI9PB)} BY} O} Sa)EI Paseq-1s00 Buluejuey B

‘suonenobeu Lol xe) pue 19bpnq [esepa) Buiob
-uo u ‘san Jemod oygnd Buipnjour ‘sjusLuuIeA0b
[200| pue ajess Jo} Buoueuyy 1dwaxe-xe; Buuejueyy B

:opnpou Ajjey ayy & passnasip
aq [iim jeyy senss) Adjjod [eiapay Loy

WBISAS om0y 3 W BIT 8jInaLissis) JO JalBBUB) [2I8Ust) PUR “Yddy JO Jeyd ‘lloaed |iig

_A1UNO9 3]} SSOIOE WIISAS A19AS U {083 JO9JE Jel[) SIANRIIUL
\Ao:om U0 9JI0A UOTUUIOD B [IM Fun[eads o[y [[2 “ATunuriod

[oea 0] 9p1A0Id swsAs 1mod orqnd EE S11Joudq anbrun o)

SUIOY| QAHP.01:S1 S[qRUD mSEmﬁwoﬁ IIAL SSUTIOWE QUO-UO-IU()

[OAS] [BI0] AYr I8 ADSh SMPUI 110 199J® So10110d [BISPY MOy puels
-Topun 0} Ayrunroddo E%o%om © ST AJ[eY QARSI VddV Y L.,




‘sgjuedwod ABseus psumo
-Aipreaud Jau)0 JO SajN PAUMO-IOISBAU] 0} uado 10U S| AjeY VddV 8Ul..

AYICEN [EUILLD U JnSed ABLU SBINU 858U} JO SUOHIBIOIA "SUORENA|
pus)xa 0} payiLLad 10U BJ8 VcldY JO SIRGIBLI BNPIAPU) "IUBAS S| PUS)
-]E 0} JJEIS JO SIaqUIBYY S1EUBS IO SSNOH O} SUCHIERAL| PUBIX8 ABWL YddY

Auo 'sajni sojyle 8jeUBS PUE 8SNOH J3PUN J2U} PASIAPE Sey [8sunoD.

(suon

-ei00sse [euoibal/alels ‘saiousbe uonoe U0l ‘sanle

-19do0o olLoeje [elnu ‘swa)sAs Jamod oygnd) ssequuisyy

1einBal yddy 03 Ajuo uado se uoissas o Bunasw
vddv Aue ajeubisep 0} 1ybu aui surluBW YddY

‘YddV 01 1l uIn}as pue wuoj uoiesibal ay) uo aAIesal
01 9j|| piNom NOA sajge; JO 18quuinu 8} 810U ases|d

.000$ SI8qUIBLL-UON
-00E$ susqueiN Vddv
1509

‘NOA a1es0)| 0} Buiksy aqg
Rew oym sisanb 1oy Aypqisia soyesss) B

4ayjebo} pejess ase
s1s9nb payAul puUB SS3pUB)IE Jey} 8INsue O}
uoNBO0| 9|gE} JO 990U aoueApe pue abeubis B

(00" GG$ 1500 S1801 [ENPIAPUY)
uoaYOUN| 8Y) 0 S19X0l} [BUOHIPPE Sa1y| B
‘Iley 1enbueq ayy u Buijess |enuasmjeld B
:s9|gEe]}
panasal JO SIeuUsg JUSAS [enUUE siU} Jo Ino aigissod

anjeA 1sow ayy 196 s1sonb pue seepus)e JNoA Jeul
ainsua puUe Uoayoun| Aepsan) 8y} je s|qe) B aAiesay

uoayouNT YR oY} INoqy 340l

Asnpu

B} puUe SSIUNWILIOD
218U} 10 Jieyaq uo 8jed
-0ApE pue panoul 186
0} JUBM OUM S[BuoIS
-sajoud semod agnd

asuapny jobiel

~Jemod ongnd

£q panes Buisg woy Wauaq ey} SUBSLBWY JBU10
uoyi 9¢ os[e g ‘Ayunwwod Jamod oygnd oA Auo
jou Juasaidal NoA asneosaq pausyibuess ale SHoys
UoBaNO PAJBUIPIO0D INQ '[BAS] [200] BY} JE UONDE [eld
-pay Jo 10edw 10a1p 8y} Inoge ssalbuo) o} Y} 0} uol
-1sod 1s8q 8y} Ut a1e NoA ‘ajeoonpe Jemod olgnd e sy
“90UBJIBLIP € 8XELL UED OUM Ssaxeww Aoyod aouanyul o}
Auunpoddo noA si sy jAnunwiwo? samod oygnd au}
1O 8210 BU} SJeay ssaIBuo) Jeyl ainsue 0} psau 3

- [N U0 UMOUY SMBI/ JNOA SXEIN

‘' ‘uoibulyseAn ‘UOIBISOSSY oMO

alqng ueoLRWY Yesulbus S8oIABS [BIUBLLLOIAUT

® ABIou7 JOIUBS ‘UUBLLJOH XY PUB ‘S8OIASS
[ElUBLLUOIIAUT Y0108 ‘YBnd BSaJaY] sid)eads
‘6102 PUE Z .0z Usemiaq pejoadxe suonenbel vd3
10 A1euen ayy woy Buynsas suoneoydu (eroueuy pue
[euoniesado ‘[eoiuyoa) [enusiod 8yl INoge uies| swo)

WJ0O:G-INdOE: L — L 10T ‘2| UYole “Aepuop

suonenbay vda MeN 24 3O
suonesdu [eonoeld ayy buipueisiapun

gg. :siexesds

‘ssaooud

[E48A0 BU} OJUI JOJOB) SBAUSOUI PUB S9XEe} MOY

ojul yBisur urex) ‘suaddey Alleas reum pue ‘SHom o}
pasoddns s, moy ‘ssecoud 196pnq sy} INoge uesT
“1eah 1se| 8y Jo yonw Jo} ssaooud 186pnq [esepsy
BU) pue 1oU8p B} UO Pasnoo) usaq sey ssaibuo)

D00 2 L -INVOE:8— L LOZ ‘21 Yomel Aepuoiy

soxel pue syayag ‘suoneudosddy ‘syobpng
:155990.( }o6png [e1apad JO MIIAISAQD

sJelwas £jjey-aid

“JaUUELU SNOJOWNY pue uny e ul sepuoud
pue saijod annesiBa) 1no juasald m LIES) suoneey
JUBLLLLIBAOE) S,VddY '$SesBuo) JO s.equuisiy JO SJojed
-nsouBoud jeaiod woy sBuiusddey yseye sy seay o}
soueyd INoA si Bunsew 1sepesiq Jeindod-sheme siu |

1sepjesag Ajjey aane|s1ba

‘ssaiBbuo) ur Aeid Jo ajels 8Y) INoge uoayouN| 8yy je
1axeads aj0uhsy e woy feay pue semod aygnd o} juel
-jodwi are jey) senssi s uo suonisod Aolod s,vddY
ap1oap sn djiay pue uoissnosip 8yl Jo Wed e ag

291IWIWOY) SUONN|oSaY ? IARe|S1697]

jop ued

noA Ajuo Jeus gof e si sy Aynn noA je Buueddey st
JEUM U0 SBAlejuasalday pUB SI0jeuas JNOA a1eonps
o} Ayunpoddo unoA st siyy ‘padxe semod ognd e sy

{I'H [o)des uo saanejuasaiday JNoA 199N

S)yoIyoIH



“Jussuo0 sy Buinb

10} pred 8d jou i 1 el
puUBIsISpUN | (uud pue
JluoMOBfe L10a) seosid Bul
SR Y dy Ut sudelboy
-ouct 4ons asn PUe JLBAD
siyy 12 auwl ycesboyoyd

0} (vddly) UONEIn0oSsY
18m0d DN UEDLISWLY
sl szuouNe | ‘BugasLu
siL} to} Buusisibal Ag
sydeabojoyd

‘510 48MO4oIaNd
@Epleyriew-a
¥8Y/-GB17/c0g Xet
GL/G

-50002 O3 'UOIBLILSEAA
00z} 8uas N

“SAY INOIoBULI0D) G/R L
LONBIo0SSY

19/M0d DljIaNg LeousLLy
Joyeunpioo?) sbunssiy
1epLuRyY BABUED

10} Pajewl-3

10 ‘poxe) 'paieLu pue
Bunum L spew 8q 1SN
suonE|RoURY) ‘984 uoly
-eA3s16a1 119Y3 JO puniol
B 0} PaJIlIusd JoU aie pue
29} uonessibaa ||ny sy
10} 9|qisuodsal ale ‘g
yoJeA] 240484 40 UO |92
-UBD J0U Op oYM SMOYs
-0U pue sjuelisibay
‘Ajuo Ajley anne|sibeT
YddV 02 8ui Jo} suol

-BUISNOL| Lir 8OURISISSE [EUOINPPE 88U NOA It
9E62- /07-20Z ¥ waliuedsp saoies Bunesil vddy
aUJ} 10BILI0D 8sedld Lurd 0Oz L SIIno 328y pue uid

0D1€ S oL Ul 308U0

AlIngybnoy; suoneatasal

anoA ayew aseald os ‘yddy 104 All|iqe!| Jeloueuly
B awoo23q ABW p|OSaJ J0U aJe JeY) suoijeAtasal
paj|e2ued jey; puiw ui daay ases|d ‘(iisodap
syB1u 3s413 Y3 03 uonippe ui Jybiu auo) sybiu
oM} Jo |ej0} B pabaeyo aq ||im pJed 1paid 3y} [eAu
-1e J0 SAep UaAas ulyym pasbueyd 1o pajjaoued

JusliueUsIUe pue Buiddous soeld
Aig|[es) puUe J8juag) LOZUSA 8L} 'siusul
-NLIOLLE OUO)SI| ‘joNdeD S M 8yl ‘8snoH
BMILAA BU} ‘'SWINBSNIA UBILOSUNLIS

IEIA [BuciEN 8ul Bupnjour suonoeile
[E00] [E48ABS Lo} Aeme sd0)S 0NN 10

-MISCNS 8apusie 1dsooe
I 8Mm USABMOH  punjal
B 8AI8031 10U |IM 16 UoIey
JIBYE |20UBD oM SIUEAS
-63y "985} UCHE|SOUED OGS
e snuiLLi ‘se) uonensibal
A19UJ} JC pLneL B O} PI))
-ue aie ‘Z1og ‘G Udie
81039 40 uo Hunum

Ul |20LI2D oL SjuedisiBay
suonnIsans
/SPUNI3H/SMOYSON
/suonejeoued

‘doys>uom

Jo Bunssiu '‘asinod e

Jo Uone||2oLied syl bupn|o
-Ul 'asni0 8Ly} jo ssojpied
-84 SaINypUSdXs |aned)

Ul safueyd 1o} asInguued
10U [ Yddy Siued
-oiued Bunaawu sy Jo Al
-lIqisuodsal au) ale s1S0d
plie susLusbueUe [Breld)
|oneay

aJe SUOIBAISSA J] "apeW S| UolleAtasal Inok aully
3yj 1B pJed }paJtd unoA o) pabieys aq jiim jeyl
soxey a|qe2i|dde snid Aeys s,3y61u auo o0} jenba
Jsodap wooJ ajqepunjai-uou e alinbai suonea
-19594 ||¥. "L LOZ ‘0| Aeniqa- Jaye 81 NoA 03 siusLl
-18nipe Aue 8t 03 9|de 87 10U I Ydd Y Ageene
Lo peseq a1el Jaybiy 2 abreyd aq AelinoA L 102

‘01 Aleniged Jayy "0k Aenagad st Aljled aaneisiba
ayy Jo} 8ye4 dnoub ay) aA19034 01 83Ep HO-1Nd 8y
peay asesjd ‘juertoduu AI9p

:Ao1j0d uUoeAI9SIY [910H

aoueIsIp BubileM UIIM SI pUE I8HO 0)
sey |endeo s,Uoneu Jno 1BU} |2 a40jdxs
0] 104iS [2ap1i 8y; SI 1910y 8y ‘Sieq pue

sjueIne)sal +0Q | 01 Anwxoid asofo ul si
UoIUm UBeND) UUad D' 'uoiBuyseap
umojumop jo ued Buimoit 1581se) au}

Ul pa1200| SI UOIBUIYSEAA EAH PUEID)

aL|). jUONEO0T 'LONED0T ‘LUoNEOOT]

xa|dwoo

LIOIBUIUSBAN
NeAH pueis) syl 1Noge aIo|\

‘goUBIRUOD) BMEISIBET Ydd V. 8ul 1senbas asesid ‘uon
-2Alesal B BubBLL UBUAA 'SUONEAIBSal 8908l 0] usdo
aq M 00Iq Woos Buidesls vYddy 8ui usuMm ‘L 1Lo2

‘L A3QUIBAON JBUE Zii7 |- L ZH/888- 1 Je J81udd SUoNeA
-19581 8] |82 asesid {94G 17| JO SBxE] 10ig Bulpn|oxe
‘signop/aiBuis) ybiu Jod GEZ$ JO 818l LLIOOI PAILNOJSID
VddY 8u} 8Insus of “L000Z "O'd 'UOIBUIYSEAA ‘AN
18813 H 000! 'uoIBuIysEAM 1BAH pueID) sy} je ‘4|
-2 | YoJeyy Wolp pay ag I Ajled anesiBe] 210z UL

SUONE|[PoLUR)) INO0E 800N Juenodw| puy/
SUOIIBAISSOY/SUONEROWIIOIDY [S10H




Y8 /-GBY/202 Xed e L¥BZ-/9Y/208 Suonsenp uojjelsibey
Alledaane|siban/B.101amodoiignd Mmm je aujjuo J9ysibay

1198- 1220 VIN ‘U0ISOg e /1981 Y X0 "O'd » UCHEIO0SSY 18MOd diiand UBdLisWY
:x0q %90] yueq Jno o0} JuawAed {jnj pue w.io} payajdwod jiey

aimeubis Lpjoupie) pueg o} abieyd o) wnowy §
ajeq uoyedxg JaquInN pfeD ¥paI0
aapually JO sweN puep uo sseeddy )| SB aWeN

vSIA O prepase O
:Bumoyjoy ayy abreyo esesld O

senoosig O sseudxg uesuswy O

2962-19%/202 10/ABL-SPIOUABY BULIEY] JOBJU0O SiuaWwABd HOV/RIM O

(rruondo) #iepiO aseyINd (Ajuo siequisw) sw g O
LIOREIOSSY Jamod d1iand UeousWwy :0) ajgeied apeLu »oayo Aw S pesopous O

‘Buus)siBal UsyMm UOITBULIOMI PIeD Jipald spiosd
10 JuswiAed apnpul O} palinbal S SJeGLIBIUON ASUSLND "S"M Ul ajgeied are sa9) IV

6S6¢-/9v/¢02

‘B101BMOJIIIgNJ@S EI0US 1B SEIOUS 158104 1JOBIU0D d]geL UOSIUNT YR
{10z ‘| JBQUIBAON UO SUSdO >00lg WooY YddY

Ay annesibe] Yddy uojusw ‘giry |- L gp-888-| suolieasessy
8E62-/9+/202 ‘BI0IBMOLIGNI@MEDININ 18 MEOIN SNDIUO :108IU0D |310H

L £62-9¥/202 ‘Bioemodonand@ edding

1 JaddiN 20f {¥G62-29v/202 ‘BI0IeMOIaNd@ORIAr Je O Ao :oeiuo) weiboid

009% JequiswiuoN O
Gees JaquiB Vddy O

LL/Z 19y PaA@oay Juawied
06S% JequmswuoN O
G/2% Jaquis vddy O

L}/ 210j2g/uQ PaA|adaY judsuied

oz8e a-('wrd G-0¢:1)

suonenbay Yd3 MaN Jo suonedydu|
[eonoe.d sy Buipuejssepun O

698¢ Q-{UOON—'W'B OE:8) SexeL.

pue syoyaq ‘suoieudoiddy ‘s1ebpng
:558001d 196png [eepa4 10 menen) O
sieujwag Ajjed-aid Aeg-yeH

poyia uswied

‘uoiBuIysem NeAH puesD

8y} 1e ysap uonensiBal Yddy eul 1e sebpeq pue sjeualews uonensiBal dn xod

:0) ew-3 [.Jo'jieyy 0 BiA UORBULIUOD ALl pUSS 9SED|d

obeubis s|qe| 10} swep uoneziuebio

uoneso| 9Ige} Jo
20110u 9oueApe pue abeubis B

uoaBYoun| 8U) 0}
S18¥01 [euonippe saiy) |

(ley 1enbueq ayy ul Buness [enusseeld B
:s9|qe) pantasal Jo sjyausg

JaqwiswuoN O

1oqWBN Vddy O

(sJaigey jo JequinN

aiqe} 1od 009%
a|ge) Jad QOES

608€ AI-SUOBAISSBY 3|dBL
suoiealasay 9|qel uoayosun ¥yl

sabpeg aWweN/SuoewIjuo)

808€ A-'W'B 0S:/
Arey pue isepfeaig angersibe O
1 youep ‘Aepssupam

208e aruos.sad Jad 00'GS$

18 (s)125101 UOBYoUN| [BUOIPPE
—oseyoind o) &y pinom | O

908€ QFUOON ‘uoayounti
SONILIWOY) SUONNOSaY % aAlesiBe O
S08€E Q-"W'B 00:6 ‘Bunssiy
SO)ILIWOY) SUORNOSaY B aAlesiBe O
£1 yose “Aepsani
yose a-'w'd 0g:G
‘uondeoay Buiioopay O
21 yosew ‘Aepuopy
:uoneysibal InoA

Ul Papnoul a8 LoIum ‘Siusns Buimoyio} 8L} pusne o} ueld noA § mojBq Xog >0 aseald

06v$ JequiowiuoN O
Gves Jaquis Vddv O
uoneysibay pajie 4o paxed ‘auljug
:xoq ajeudosdde ay} oayo asesid uonensibay

1o8e arAjjey aanejsiba O

SUONEBPOLLLICOJE [e1oads aunbal Aew pue AjiIgesip e arey noA Ji aseyoay) O
lew-3 auoyd 1o8jU0D Asuabiew]

1IBw-3

x84 suoyd

dz eEs Ao

Ssappy

uojieziuetiQ

anlL aumeN

(‘suoydoje) e uonesiBal 1deooe J0UUED B
‘sjuensiBal [EUONIPPE 0} LLOy 8onpoiday Alesio juud 8SEs|d) UOHIBLUIO| 33pUSRY

‘0@ ‘uojbulysepm
uoBuiysep nekH puels |Z1Log ‘P21 udien

uuio uonesiboy Ajjled aaneisita vddv 2102



